
Agenda
Sumter County Council

Regular Meeting
Tuesday, November 12, 2019  Held at 6:00 PM.

Sumter County Administration Building – County Council Chambers
Third Floor, 13 E. Canal Street, Sumter, SC

1. CALL TO ORDER: 

  
1) 

Chairman Or Vice Chairman Of Sumter County Council 

2. INVOCATION: Council Member, Staff, or Member of the Public

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA: November 12, 2019

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:     Regular Meeting Held On 
   1) Regular Meeting Tuesday, October 22, 2019 

6. LAND USE MATTERS AND REZONING REQUESTS: 

  

1) OA1909    StandAlone Truck  Parking  In The Agricultural  Conservation  (AC) District  (County)(19
910)  –  Third  Reading    A  Request  To  Amend  Article  3  Section  3.N.3:  Agricultural  Conservation  District 
(Conditional Uses) And Exhibit 5: Permitted And Conditional Uses In The Agricultural Conservation District Of 
The  Sumter  County  Zoning & Development  Standards Ordinance  In Order  To  Include Commercial  Truck And 
Trailer Parking Lots (SIC Code 752) As A Conditional Use (C500) In The Agricultural Conservation (AC) Zoning 
District.

  
2)  19911  –  Second  Reading    An  Ordinance  Of  The  Sumter  County  Council  Adopting  The  Sumter  2040 
Comprehensive Plan.

7. OTHER PUBLIC HEARINGS:
   1) None

8. NEW BUSINESS:

  
1) R1904   A Resolution To Opt Out Of The Nationwide Class Certified  For Negotiation  Purposes  In  In Re 
National Prescription Opiate Litigation, MDL 2804.

  
2)  19914    First  Reading     An Ordinance Authorizing  The  Conveyance Of  Property And  The Granting Of 
Permissions On Property Located On Manning Avenue, Sumter, SC.

   3) Discussion And Possible Action Concerning Adjustment Of Pay For The Sumter County Sheriff’s Office 
Employees.



Agenda – Regular Meeting  Sumter County Council
November 12, 2019
Page 2 of 3

  

4)  It   May Be Necessary  To Hold An Executive  Session To Discuss An  Economic Development Matter,  An 
Employment  Matter,  A  Legal  Briefing,  Or  Other  Matters  Pertaining  To  An  Executive  Session,  And   Take 
Appropriate Actions Thereafter If Required.  

9. OLD BUSINESS:

  
1)  19912  –  Third  Reading    An  Ordinance  Authorizing  The  Transfer  Of  Property  On Wedgefield  Road  To 
Wedgefield Baptist Church.

  

2) 19913 – Second Reading  An Ordinance Authorizing (1) The Execution And Delivery Of A Fee In Lieu Of 
Tax And Incentive Agreement  By And Between Sumter County, South Carolina (The “County”) And A Company 
Identified  For  The  Time  Being  As  Project  Combine,  Acting  For  Itself,  One Or More  Affiliates,  And/Or  Other 
Project  Sponsors  (Collectively,  The  “Company”),  Pursuant  To  Which  The  County  Shall  Covenant  To  Accept 
Certain Negotiated Fees In Lieu Of Ad Valorem Taxes With Respect To The Establishment And/Or Expansion Of 
Certain Facilities In The County (The “Project”); (2) The Benefits Of A MultiCounty Industrial Or Business Park 
To  Be  Made  Available  To  The  Company  And  The  Project;  (3)  Certain  Special  Source  Revenue  Credits  In 
Connection With The Project; And (4) Other Matters Relating Thereto.

10. COMMITTEE REPORTS:

  

1) (NOTE:  If any of the committee meetings end early, the succeeding meeting may begin immediately after the 
previous meeting.)

Public Works  Committee Meeting,  November  12,  2019,  4:00  p.m.  In  County  Council’s  Conference  Room, 
Sumter County Courthouse 141 N. Main Street, Room 301. (Baker, Baten, Sumpter)

   2) Land Use Committee Meeting, November 12, 2019, 4:30 p.m. In County Council’s Conference Room, Sumter 
County Courthouse 141 N. Main Street, Room 301. (Edens, Baten, Baker)

  
3)  Fiscal,  Tax,  and  Property  Committee  Meeting  November  12,  2019,  5:30  p.m.  In  County  Council’s 
Conference Room, Sumter County Courthouse 141 N. Main Street, Room 301. (McCain, Edens, McGhaney)

  
4) Report From Council Members On Other Meetings, Trainings, And/Or Conferences.

11. MONTHLY REPORTS:
   1) Christmas Tree Lighting Program

   2) Sheriff' Office Monthly Report

   3) Building Codes Of Adjustment And Appeals Meeting

   4) Red Cross Information

  
5) Sumter County Newsletter



Agenda – Regular Meeting  Sumter County Council
November 12, 2019
Page 3 of 3

  
6) 2020 Chamber Retreat

12. COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT:

13. PUBLIC COMMENT:

14. ADJOURNMENT:

In compliance with ADA/Section 504, Sumter County Is Prepared To Make Accommodations For Individuals Needing Assistance To 
Participate In Our Programs, Services, Or Activities.

Pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act, notice of the meeting, date, time, place of meeting and agenda was posted on the bulletin 
board at the County Administrative Office, 13 East Canal Street, Sumter, SC and the Sumter County website www.sumtercountysc.org 

under Our Council Agenda/Minutes. In addition, the agenda electronically sent to newspapers, radio stations, television, and concerned 
citizens

http://www.sumtercountysc.org


Minutes
Sumter County Council

Regular Meeting
Tuesday, October 22, 2019 -- Held at 6:00 p.m.
Sumter County Courthouse, Third Floor, Room 308

County Council’s Chambers – 141 North Main Street, Sumter, SC

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:  Vice Chairman James Byrd, Artie Baker, Eugene R. Baten, Charles T. 
Edens, and Vivian Fleming McGhaney. 

COUNCIL MEMBERS ABSENT:  Chairman James T. McCain, Jr.  (Conference); Chris Sumpter (Death In 
Family)

STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT:  Lorraine Dennis, Mary W. Blanding, Johnathan Bryan; Joe Perry, Keysa Rogers, 
Allen Dailey, and two Sheriff Deputies. 

MEDIA PRESENT:  The Item Newspaper

MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC IN ATTENDANCE:  Approximately sixteen members of the public attended this 
meeting.    

CALL TO ORDER:  Chairman Or Vice Chairman Of Sumter County Council 
The Honorable James R. Byrd, Vice Chairman of Sumter County Council, called the meeting to order.  

INVOCATION:  Council Member, Staff Member, Or Local Citizen 
Councilman Vivian Fleming McGhaney gave the invocation.  

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:   Everyone in attendance repeated the Pledge of Allegiance to the American Flag.  

APPROVAL OF AGENDA:  Regular Meeting Tuesday, October 22, 2019
Vice Chairman Byrd called for a motion on the approval of the agenda for Council’s October 22, 2019, meeting.  

ACTION:  MOTION was made by Councilman Baker, seconded by Councilman Baten, and unanimously 
carried by Council to approve the agenda of Council’s October 22, 2019, meeting as presented.  

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: Regular Meeting Tuesday, October 8, 2019 
Vice Chairman Byrd called for a motion on the approval of the minutes of Council’s meeting held on October 8, 
2019.  

ACTION:  MOTION was made by Councilman Baten, seconded by Councilman McGhaney, and 
unanimously carried by Council to approve the minutes of County Council’s meeting held on October 8, 
2019.  

LAND USE MATTERS AND REZONING REQUESTS: 
Planned Development/Rezoning Requests

(1) OA-19-09 -- Stand-Alone Truck Parking In The Agricultural Conservation (AC) District (County) (19-
910) – Second Reading/Public Hearing -- A Request To Amend Article 3 Section 3.N.3: Agricultural 
Conservation District (Conditional Uses) And Exhibit 5: Permitted And Conditional Uses In The Agricultural 
Conservation District Of The Sumter County Zoning & Development Standards Ordinance In Order To Include 
Commercial Truck And Trailer Parking Lots (SIC Code 752) As A Conditional Use (C-500) In The Agricultural 



Minutes– Regular Meeting - Sumter County Council
Tuesday, October 22, 2019
Page 2

Conservation (AC) Zoning District. (Council Will Hold A Public Hearing On This Ordinance Amendment Prior To Action 
On Second Reading.)

Mr. George McGregor, the Planning Director, presented this Ordinance Amendment to Council for second 
reading and public hearing.  He stated that this is an Ordinance Amendment request from Mr. Hampton Gardner. 
The purpose of the request is to amend the text of the Sumter County Zoning & Development Standards 
Ordinance (herein referred to as the Ordinance) to allow stand-alone commercial truck and trailer parking lots 
in the Agricultural Conservation (AC) District via Conditional Use (C-500) approval.

Mr. McGregor informed Council that the applicant originally applied to make this use a special exception in the 
AC district. However, after review, staff recommends that this use go forward through the Ordinance 
Amendment process as a Conditional Use (C-500) versus a special exception. 
It was also stated that if this ordinance is approved, the staff has developed the following specific ordinance 
conditions for this use:

1. The applicant shall follow conditional-distance requirements outlined in Article 3, Exhibit 5. Applicable 
distance shall be measured from the edge of the proposed improved parking lot area.

2. All conditional use criteria outlined in Article 3, Section 5.b.1.a. thru 5.b.1.f. must be met.   
 

3. Access to the site shall only be from a paved road that is functionally classified by SCDOT as a major 
or minor arterial.  

4. A paved transition surface from the public road to at least the security gate of the site or at least 50 ft., 
whichever is greater.

5. A minimum 6-ft. six foot security fence around the improved parking lot area.

6. The defined parking area must meet applicable non-residential setbacks. 

7. Minimum parcel size of 2 acres.

8. Parking area surface materials must consist of either gravel, crusher run, asphalt, or concrete. 

9. In addition to required landscaping outlined in Article 8, Section D, the following buffer yard plantings 
or equivalent shall be provided where adjacent to residential land use and/or where adjacent to a street 
or road:

a. 15 ft. minimum buffer width; 
b. 3 canopy trees per 100 linear feet;
c. 8 evergreen trees per 100 linear feet;
d. 15 tall shrubs per 100 linear feet;
e. Plant materials shall be sufficiently large and planted in such a fashion that a year round screen 

at least six (ft.) in height shall be produced within three (3) growing seasons.

10. All motor vehicles parked on the site must be properly licensed, registered, operable and capable of 
being driven off the site.  

 



Minutes– Regular Meeting - Sumter County Council
Tuesday, October 22, 2019
Page 3

The proposed amendments would impact the following sections: 

1. Amend Article 3: Section 3.n.3 – Conditional Uses (Agricultural Conservation District) to include 
Commercial Truck & Trailer Parking (SIC Code 752) as a use subject to conditional use approval.  

2. Amend Article 3: Exhibit 5 – Permitted and Conditional Uses in the Commercial, Industrial, 
Agricultural, and Conservation Districts to specifically list Commercial Truck & Trailer  Parking 
(SIC Code 752) as a C-500 use. 

3. Amend Article 5, Section 5.b.1 Criteria for Review to include specific conditions for Commercial 
Truck & Trailer Parking Lot (SIC 752). 

4. Amend Article 10: Definitions to include a specific definition for Commercial Truck & Trailer 
Parking Lots. 

After Mr. McGregor’s presentation, the Vice Chairman convened a public hearing on this proposed Ordinance 
Amendment.  He asked if anyone wanted to speak in favor of or opposition to the ordinance.  No one spoke to 
this issue, therefore, the Vice Chairman closed the public hearing and Council took action on second reading.  

ACTION:  MOTION was made by Councilman Baten, seconded by Councilwoman Baker, seconded by 
Councilman McGhaney, and unanimously carried by Council to grant second reading approval as 
presented.  

(2) 19-911 – Second Reading/Public Hearing -- An Ordinance Of The Sumter County Council Adopting The 
Sumter 2040 Comprehensive Plan. (Council Will Hold A Public Hearing On This This Ordinance Prior To Action On Second 
Reading.)

Mr. McGregor also presented this Ordinance Amendment for second reading and public hearing.  He stated that 
the 2040 Comprehensive Plan would allow for the City and County, through the work of the Planning 
Commission, to direct Land Use growth for Commercial, Residential, Industrial, Agricultural, and other areas 
throughout Sumter.   

Additionally, Mr. McGregor stated that the 2040 Comprehensive Plan is more user friendly. There is information 
in the 2040 Plan that will allow the average citizen to be able to read and understand the information.  Also, the 
maps that are within the plan are color coordinated with green being the more rural areas, yellow the more 
suburban areas both City and County, blue is the Military Protection area, and the green is the environmental 
conservation areas.  

There are several recommendations and suggestions within the document pending directions from Sumter 
County Council, which include possible changes to the Zoning Ordinance, studies for housing development, 
concerns or recommendations for economic development, etc.  

After Mr. McGregor’s presentation, Vice Chairman Byrd convened a public hearing on this proposed Ordinance 
Amendment.  He asked if anyone wanted to speak in favor of or opposition to the ordinance.  No one spoke 
during this public hearing; therefore, the Vice Chairman closed the public hearing.  

Prior to taking action on second reading, Vice Chairman Byrd asked Mr. McGregor if there have been any 
changes to the commercial corridor.   Mr. McGregor stated that there are no recommended changes to the 
commercial corridor.  Then the Vice Chairman called for the motion on this ordinance.  



Minutes– Regular Meeting - Sumter County Council
Tuesday, October 22, 2019
Page 4

ACTION:  MOTION was made by Councilman Baker, seconded by Councilman Edens, and unanimously 
carried by Council to defer second reading approval and to schedule a Land Use Committee Meeting on 
November 12, 2019, at 4:30 p.m. in order for Committee Members and Council members to discuss this 
matter further.  

OTHER PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

(1) 19-912 - An Ordinance Authorizing The Transfer Of Property On Wedgefield Road To Wedgefield Baptist 
Church.  (Council Will Take Action On Second Reading Immediately After The Public Hearing Or During Old Business.)

Mr. Johnathan Bryan, the County Attorney, presented this proposed ordinance to Council for second reading 
approval.  He stated that there are several mark-ups listed within the proposed contract.  A clean copy of the 
contract will be ready by third reading; however, the information in this mark-up copy of the contracted needed 
to be available as a part of the ordinance during the public hearing.  The Wedgefield Church offered to purchase 
the property on Wedgefield Road from the County for $30,000. 

The Vice Chairman convened a public hearing on this matter.  No one spoke during public hearing; therefore 
the Chairman closed the public hearing.  The action on second reading is recorded under Old Business listed 
below.  

NEW BUSINESS: 

(1) A Proclamation Proclaiming October 23-31, 2019, as Red Ribbon Week In Sumter County, South Carolina.  

Mary W. Blanding, the Clerk to Council, presented this proposed proclamation to Council on behalf of the Parris 
Island Youth Program.  One of the students, Corporal Bilby, was present and received the Proclamation on 
behalf of the Parris Island Young Marines Program.  After the proclamation was read by the Clerk, pictures were 
taken with the Vice Chairman and Mayor Allen Daily from the Sheriff’s Office.  

ACTION:  MOTION was made by Councilman Baker, seconded by Councilman McGhaney, and 
unanimously carried by Council to grant approval of the proclamation, and authorized the Chairman and 
the Clerk to execute and deliver the proclamation on behalf of the County.  

WHEREAS, Alcohol and drug abuse in this Nation have reached epidemic stages; and
 
WHEREAS, It is imperative that visible, unified prevention education efforts by community members be 
launched to eliminate the demand for drugs; and
 
WHEREAS, The National Red Ribbon Campaign offers citizens the opportunity to demonstrate their 
commitment to drug-free lifestyles (no use of illegal drugs, no illegal use of legal drugs); and
 
WHEREAS, The National Red Ribbon Campaign will be celebrated in every community in America during Red 
Ribbon Week, October 23-31, 2019; and
 
WHEREAS, business, Government, parents, law enforcement, media, medical institutions, religious 
institutions, schools, senior citizens, service organizations, and youth will demonstrate their commitment to 
healthy, drug-free lifestyles by wearing and displaying red ribbons during this week-long campaign; and
 
WHEREAS, the community of Sumter County further commit to work with Law Enforcement to ensure the 
success of the Red Ribbon Campaign;



Minutes– Regular Meeting - Sumter County Council
Tuesday, October 22, 2019
Page 5

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, We, the Members of Sumter County Council, do hereby proclaim 
October 23-31, 2019, as RED RIBBON WEEK, and encourage our citizens to participate in drug prevention 
education activities, not only during Red Ribbon Week, but all year long, making a visible statement that we are 
strongly committed to a drug-free community  in Sumter County, South Carolina. 

 
(2) Sumter County 2020 Employees Holiday Calendar.

The Assistant County Administrator, Lorraine W. Dennis, presented this proposed Employee Calendar to 
Council members for action.  She stated that there are no new dates; however, the additional date on the 2020 
calendar is Election Day. After review of the calendar, Vice Chairman Byrd stated that he would entertain a 
motion for approval of the 2020 Employee Calendar.  

Wednesday, January 1 New Year’s Day
Monday, January 20 Martin Luther King, Jr. Day
Monday, February 17 President’s Day
Friday, April 10 Good Friday
Monday, May 25 Memorial Day
Saturday, July 4 (Observed Friday 3) Independence Day
Monday, September 7 Labor Day
Tuesday, November 3 Election Day
Wednesday, November 11 Veteran’s Day
Thursday and Friday, November 26 and 27 Thanksgiving
Wed, Thurs and Friday, December 23, 24, and 25 Christmas
Varied Employee Birthday

ACTION:  MOTION was made by Councilman Baker, seconded by Councilman McGhaney, and 
unanimously carried by Council to grant approval of the 2020 Sumter County Employee Holiday Calendar 
as presented to Council.  

(3) Sumter County Council 2020 Meeting Calendar.  
Approved

 

Month Of Meeting First Meeting Date Second Meeting Date 

January 14
Held at 141 N. Main Street

28
Held at 141 N. Main Street

February 11
Held at 141 N. Main Street

25
Held at 141 N. Main Street

March 10
Held at 141 N. Main Street

24
Held at 141 N. Main Street

April 14
Held at 141 N. Main Street

28
Held at 141 N. Main Street

May 12
Held at 13 E. Canal Street

26
Held at 13 E. Canal Street

June 9 
Held at 13 E. Canal Street

23
Held at 13 E. Canal Street

July 14
Held at 13 E. Canal Street

28
Held at 13 E. Canal Street



Minutes– Regular Meeting - Sumter County Council
Tuesday, October 22, 2019
Page 6

ACTION:  MOTION was made by Councilman Baker, seconded by Councilman Edens, and unanimously 
carried by Council to grant approval of Council meeting calendar as presented.  

(4) It  May Be Necessary To Hold An Executive Session To Discuss An Economic Development Matter, An 
Employment Matter, A Legal Briefing, Or Other Matters Pertaining To An Executive Session, And  Take 
Appropriate Actions Thereafter If Required.  

None

OLD BUSINESS: 

(1) 19-912 – Seconding Reading An Ordinance Authorizing The Transfer Of Property On Wedgefield Road To 
Wedgefield Baptist Church. 

Vice Chairman James R. Byrd asked the County Attorney to present this ordinance to Council and the public.  
Information on this presentation is listed above under Public Hearing.  After the presentation, the Vice Chairman 
convened a public hearing.  Once the public hearing was concluded, the Vice Chairman stated that he would 
entertain a motion concerning second reading for this ordinance.  

ACTION:  MOTION was made by Councilman Baker, seconded by Councilman Edens, and unanimously 
carried by Council to grant second reading approval on this proposed ordinance.
  

COMMITTEE REPORTS: 

(1) Report From Council Members On Other Meetings, Trainings, And/Or Conferences.

Councilman Baten called the attention to Council about a letter received from Sumter County Sheriff (attached 
to the end of these minutes) and all Council members received a copy of this letter.  Councilman Baten asked 
that his statements that he read would be included in the minutes verbatim as listed below.    

Letter (undated) from Sumter County Sheriff Anthony Dennis regarding, “Salary Adjustments for 
Deputies and Detention Center Officers.”  Sheriff Dennis related that a recent article by WIS (Kiana 
Miller) on October 9, 2019, referenced a study published by security.org focused on the best and worst 
cities for police officers in the country.  Five South Carolina cities made the list.  

In Sheriff Dennis’ letter, he said, “I am disappointed and embarrassed that Sumter is presented this 
way.”  He further stated that his deputies’ are under paid.  He said he has personally attended County 
Council meetings and seen Council members advocate for an increase in educator’s salaries but, never 
heard any council member speak as passionately about law enforcement salaries.  

August 11
Held at 13 E. Canal Street

25
Held at 13 E. Canal Street

September 8
Held at 13 E. Canal Street

22
Held at 13 E. Canal Street

October 13 
Held at 13 E. Canal Street

27
Held at 13 E. Canal Street

November 10
Held at 13 E. Canal Street

24
Held at 13 E. Canal Street

December 8
Held at 13 E. Canal Street

None



Minutes– Regular Meeting - Sumter County Council
Tuesday, October 22, 2019
Page 7

Sheriff Dennis said “And today we are dealing with much harsher criminals who are later housed at 
our detention center where some of them verbally abuse, threaten, attack, and throw bodily fluids on 
our detention officers.”  I am personally aware of detention center inmates’ verbally abuse and threats.  
My daughter, Doctor Alexandria Baten, was an education instructor for the Sumter Adult Education 
Center and taught classes at the Sumter/Lee Detention Center.  Due to under staffing and lack of 
security, she was repeatedly verbally abused and had her life threatened.  

Therefore, I wholeheartedly agree with Sheriff Dennis when he states, “It seems County Council is 
neglecting its oath to do what is best for the County by neglecting our County officers.”  Conversely, 
I concur with the statements by Sheriff Dennis.  This is not about policies, this is about men and women 
who put themselves in harm’s way to serve and protect our citizens. People in uniform who make a 
career in law enforcement.  Never knowing when they will be required to make the ultimate sacrifice 
in the line of duty.  

I recommend that our Personnel Committee address this issue.  However, due to past action, I will 
have this issue placed on the agenda for open discussion during our regular council meeting on 
November 12, 2019.  

Councilman Edens asked to be heard on this matter as presented by Councilman Baten; the Vice Chairman 
allowed comments from Councilman Edens.  Councilman Edens said that this is clearly a budgetary matter and 
it should be heard during the budget process.  It is not something that Council would even consider during mid-
year.  Councilman Edens further stated that he would fully support Council looking at this during the budgetary 
process as well as conducting an overall staff analysis of all employees and salaries.  He further said that he does 
not believe that this should be discussed in the meeting on November 12, 2019, as suggested by Councilman 
Baten.  

Councilman Baten further stated that he would agree that this is a budgetary item; however, what happened out 
at the jail did not happen during the budget time.  When the Detention Center had the riot, one of the Correctional 
Officers was stabbed in the back; it was not during budgetary times.  Therefore, Council can wait, but he, 
Councilman Baten, is trying to be proactive and start dealing with the issues out there.  It was further stated by 
Councilman Baten that the County now has criminals that are more dangerous in its detention center. We should 
take action to make sure that they are secure. We need to make sure we have the staff; they are short staffed at 
the detention center; they are about 70 percent manned that creates a security problem that puts their lives in 
danger.  We cannot wait for one of those officers to be seriously harmed or killed before we take action.  We 
need to be proactive and not reactive.    

MONTHLY REPORTS
1. Sheriff's Office
2. Chamber Retreat  2020
3. Planning Commission Monthly Report
4. Building Department  Monthly Report
5. Tour Of International Paper Company, Sumter Plant
6. HYPE Program, Lights On  After School Program
7. Make A Difference Day Crestwood Student
8. Economic Impact – Darla Moore School of Business

COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT
The County Administrator, Gary Mixon, was not at the meeting due to attending the National Association of County 
Administrator/City Managers.  Mr. Mixon represented South Carolina as the President of the 
South Carolina President of the County Administrators/City Managers.  



Minutes– Regular Meeting - Sumter County Council
Tuesday, October 22, 2019
Page 8

Mrs. Dennis, the Assistant County Administrator, was present.  She stated she had no report for Council.  

PUBLIC COMMENT
Vice Chairman Byrd stated that he would receive comments from the Public, and each person would have up to three 
minutes to speak to Sumter County Council.  

 Bennie Webb stated that he is a retired SLED Agent, former Chief of Police, Undercover Narcotic Agent and has 
served over 30 years in law enforcement.  Mr. Webb said that he wholeheartedly agrees with Sheriff Dennis and 
Councilman Baten that the officers have to make more money.  He further stated that he has not seen crime as it 
is now in Sumter with the number of guns and the constant crimes being committed.  The officers need 
appropriate compensation whether it is budget time or not.  He stated that he admonishes Council to do something 
about the salaries of law enforcement officers.  Mr. Webb said that if nothing is done, Sumter County would 
continue to lose officers to SLED, Richland County, Highway Patrol, and even Lee County.  Mr. Webb also 
asked Council to consider an emergency meeting and an emergency ordinance to take care of this problem. 

 Larry Huff, President of the Sumter County Veterans Association – Spoke to Council about the new Veterans 
Park.  He stated that there is one low spoke that needs to be build up or it could cause problems.  The location is 
what used to be the entrance to the park.  People are still trying to use that as an entrance.  

 Barbara Richburg spoke to Council about her concern for the lack of interaction with the Codes Enforcement 
Personnel in the Greater Turkey Creek Neighborhood.  She stated there have been numerous calls during the 
summer; however, there is no response to the calls.  If calls are received, the requests have not been handled.  
They were told that the codes enforcement officer for their area is hospitalized; but the needs for help is still 
there.   

ADJOURNMENT
There being no further business for Sumter County Council, and no additional comments from the public, the meeting 
adjourned at 6:31 p.m. after a motion by Councilman Edens, seconded Councilman Baker, and unanimously carried 
by Council.  

Respectfully submitted,

______________________________________ __________________________
Chairman or Vice Chairman                                                Clerk to County Council 
Sumter County Council                                                         Sumter County Council

Approved: _____________, 2019

********************************************************************************************
*********
I certify that public and media notification of the above-mentioned meeting was given prior thereto as follows 
required by Freedom of Information:

Public Notified: Yes

Manner Notified: Agendas posted on bulletin board on first floor of the Sumter County Courthouse.  

Date Posted: October 18, 2019

James T. McCain, 
Jr.

Mary W. Blanding



Minutes– Regular Meeting - Sumter County Council
Tuesday, October 22, 2019
Page 9

Media Notified: Yes  

Manner Notified: Agenda Information is listed on Sumter County’s Home Page, and E-mailed to The Item, 
The Chamber, WIS-TV, WBTW, and Time Warner Cable.  

Date Notified: October 17, 2019

Respectfully submitted,

Mary W. Blanding



Minutes– Regular Meeting - Sumter County Council
Tuesday, October 22, 2019
Page 10



Minutes– Regular Meeting - Sumter County Council
Tuesday, October 22, 2019
Page 11



Minutes– Regular Meeting - Sumter County Council
Tuesday, October 22, 2019
Page 12



Minutes– Regular Meeting - Sumter County Council
Tuesday, October 22, 2019
Page 13



Minutes– Regular Meeting - Sumter County Council
Tuesday, October 22, 2019
Page 14



Sumter City-County
Planning Department

DERON L. MCCORMICK                                                               GEORGE K. MCGREGOR                                                                          
GARY M. MIXON
CITY MANAGER                                                                                PLANNING DIRECTOR                                                       COUNTY 
ADMINISTRATOR

12 WEST LIBERTY STREET   •   PO BOX 1449   •   SUMTER, SC 29151
OFFICE: (803) 774-1660   •   FAX (803) 774-1687

MEMORANDUM

TO: Mary Blanding, Clerk to County Council

FROM: George K. McGregor, AICP, Planning Director

DATE: November 6, 2019

SUBJECT: COUNTY COUNCIL AGENDA – November 12, 2019

The Sumter City-County Planning Commission will have the following land use item(s) for 
review at County Council on Tuesday, November 12, 2019:

      THIRD AND FINAL READING

OA-19-09, Stand-Alone Truck Parking in the Agricultural Conservation (AC) 
District (County)
A request to amend Article 3 Section 3.N.3: Agricultural Conservation District 
(Conditional Uses) and Exhibit 5: Permitted and Conditional Uses in the Agricultural 
Conservation District of the Sumter County Zoning & Development Standards 
Ordinance in order to include Commercial Truck and Trailer Parking Lots (SIC Code 
752) as a conditional use (C-500) in the Agricultural Conservation (AC) zoning 
district. 
 
SEOND READING

Sumter 2040 Comprehensive Plan

If you have any questions or need additional information, please contact me at (803) 774-1660.



Sumter City-County Planning Commission
September 25, 2019

OA-19-09, Stand-Alone Truck Parking in the Agricultural Conservation (AC) District 
(County)

I.  THE REQUEST

Applicant: Hampton Gardner

Request: Amend Article 3 Section 3.N.3: Agricultural Conservation District 
(Conditional Uses) and Exhibit 5: Permitted and Conditional Uses in the 
Agricultural Conservation District of the Sumter County Zoning & 
Development Standards Ordinance in order to include Commercial 
Truck and Trailer Parking Lots (SIC Code 752) as a conditional use (C-
500) in the Agricultural Conservation (AC) zoning district.  

II.   BACKGROUND 

This is an Ordinance Amendment request by Mr. Hampton Gardner. The purpose of the request 
is to amend the text of the Sumter County Zoning & Development Standards Ordinance (herein 
referred to as the Ordinance) to allow stand-alone commercial truck and trailer parking lots in the 
Agricultural Conservation (AC) District via conditional use (C-500) approval.

Note: The applicant originally applied to make this use a special exception in the AC district. 
However, after review, staff recommends that this use go forward through the Ordinance 
Amendment process as a Conditional Use (C-500) versus a special exception. 

Stand-alone commercial truck and trailer parking areas are currently not permitted in the AC 
district. Within the Ordinance, this use is included under the larger classification of Automotive 
Parking SIC Code 752 as a permitted by-right use within the Light Industrial (LI) and Heavy 
Industrial (HI) zoning districts only. Additionally, it is a listed conditional use within the General 
Commercial (GC), Central Business District (CBD), and Multi-Use Industrial (MUI) zoning 
districts.

The Ordinance includes general provisions applicable to all conditional uses in Article 5, Section 
5.b.1.a thru 5.b.1.f. Additionally, the Ordinance lists conditional uses with an associated distance 
(i.e., C-500) for certain uses in the AC district. These types of conditional uses require that 
applicants obtain concurrence from at least 2/3 (67%) of surrounding property owners and 
tenants located within the stated distance of the proposed building or limits of disturbance. 



2

If approved, the proposed text amendment will allow stand-alone commercial truck and trailer 
parking as a C-500 use within AC district. In addition to all applicable conditional use 
requirements, staff has developed specific ordinance conditions for this use:

1. The applicant shall follow conditional-distance requirements outlined in Article 3, 
Exhibit 5. Applicable distance shall be measured from the edge of the proposed improved 
parking lot area.

2. All conditional use criteria outlined in Article 3, Section 5.b.1.a. thru 5.b.1.f. must be 
met.   
 

3. Access to the site shall only be from a paved road that is functionally classified by 
SCDOT as a major or minor arterial.  

4. A paved transition surface from the public road to at least the security gate of the site or 
at least 50 ft., whichever is greater.

5. A minimum 6-ft. six foot security fence around the improved parking lot area.

6. The defined parking area must meet applicable non-residential setbacks. 

7. Minimum parcel size of 2 acres.

8. Parking area surface materials must consist of either gravel, crusher run, asphalt, or 
concrete. 

9. In addition to required landscaping outlined in Article 8, Section D, the following buffer 
yard plantings or equivalent shall be provided where adjacent to residential land use 
and/or where adjacent to a street or road:

a. 15 ft. minimum buffer width; 
b. 3 canopy trees per 100 linear feet;
c. 8 evergreen trees per 100 linear feet;
d. 15 tall shrubs per 100 linear feet;
e. Plant materials shall be sufficiently large and planted in such a fashion that a year 

round screen at least six (ft.) in height shall be produced within three (3) growing 
seasons.

10. All motor vehicles parked on the site must be properly licensed, registered, operable and 
capable of being driven off the site.  

 
Proposed Text Amendment

A strike-through of the proposed text amendments are attached as “Attachment #1”. The 
proposed amendments would impact the following sections: 



3

1. Amend Article 3: Section 3.n.3 – Conditional Uses (Agricultural Conservation 
District) to include Commercial Truck & Trailer Parking (SIC Code 752) as a use 
subject to conditional use approval.  

2. Amend Article 3: Exhibit 5 – Permitted and Conditional Uses in the Commercial, 
Industrial, Agricultural, and Conservation Districts to specifically list Commercial 
Truck & Trailer  Parking (SIC Code 752) as a C-500 use. 

3. Amend Article 5, Section 5.b.1 Criteria for Review to include specific conditions for 
Commercial Truck & Trailer Parking Lot (SIC 752). 

4. Amend Article 10: Definitions to include a specific definition for Commercial Truck 
& Trailer Parking Lots. 

III. STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends approval for Commercial Truck & Trailer Parking Lots to be included as a 
Conditional Use (C-500) in the AC zoning district with the specific conditions referenced above 
and included in Attachment # 1. 

Short-term commercial truck parking is a national concern. Commercial truck drivers are only 
allowed to be on the road a certain amount of time each day, according to the Federal Motor 
Carrier Safety Administration Hours of Service requirements.  Lack of truck parking supply can 
lead to fatigued truck drivers on the road and force them to park at unsafe locations, such as on 
the shoulder of the road, exit ramps, or vacant lots according information released by the 
National Coalition on Truck Parking under the sponsorship of the U.S. Department of 
Transportation. Additionally, commercial trucks and trailers are not permitted in many 
residential areas where truck drivers have housing. 

Staff notes that there are limited 
areas in Sumter County with 
official short-term commercial 
truck and trailer parking. 
However, staff also notes that this 
use has the potential to provide 
impacts to adjacent property. 
Specific Ordinance conditions 
related to this use have been 
developed that address location, 
setbacks, screening, surface area 
material, parcel size, and security. 
Specifically noted is the proposed 
condition that such uses must have 
access from a paved arterial road. 
See map to the right showing 
arterial roads in Sumter County 
and the AC zoning district.  



4

V. PLANNING COMMISION – SEPTEMBER 25, 2019

The Sumter City-County Planning Commission at its meeting on Wednesday, September 25, 
2019, voted to recommend approval of this request.

VI. COUNTY COUNCIL – OCTOBER 8, 2019 – FIRST READING

The Sumter County Council at its meeting on Tuesday, October 8, 2019, gave First Reading 
approval for this request.

VII. COUNTY COUNCIL – OCTOBER 22, 2019 – SECOND READING/PUBLIC 
HEARING

The Sumter County Council at its meeting on Tuesday, October 22, gave Second Reading 
approval for this request.

VIII. COUNTY COUNCIL – NOVEMBER 12, 2019 – THIRD/FINAL READING



19-911

AN ORDINANCE OF THE SUMTER COUNTY COUNCIL ADOPTING 
THE SUMTER 2040 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 

Whereas, Sumter County Council adopted the 2030 Comprehensive Plan on 
December 8, 2009; and

Whereas, Sumter County Council finds it appropriate to re-evaluate and revise 
the 2030 Comprehensive Plan to meet changing conditions; and

Whereas, Sumter County Council will consider the adoption of the Sumter 2040 
Comprehensive Plan, hereinafter referred to as “the Comprehensive Plan” to provide a 
long range land use vision for the community’s future; and

Whereas, the Comprehensive Plan includes all of the planning and mapping 
elements required by Chapter 29 of the South Carolina Local Government 
Comprehensive Planning Enabling Act of 1994, as amended, as follows:

1. a population element which considers historic trends and projections, 
household numbers and sizes, educational levels, and income characteristics;

2. an economic development element which considers labor force and labor 
force characteristics, employment by place of work and residence, and 
analysis of the economic base;

3. a natural resources element which considers slope characteristics, prime 
agricultural and forest land, plant and animal habitats, parks and recreation 
areas, scenic views and sites, wetlands, and soil types;

4. a cultural resources element which considers historic buildings and structures, 
commercial districts, residential districts, unique, natural or scenic resources, 
archaeological, and other cultural resources;

5. a community facilities element which considers water supply, treatment, and 
distribution; sewage system and waste water treatment; solid waste collection 
and disposal, fire protection, emergency medical services, and general 
government facilities; education facilities; and libraries and other cultural 
facilities;

6. a housing element which considers location, types, age and condition of 
housing, owner and renter occupancy, and affordability of housing; and 

7. a land use element which considers existing and future land use by categories; 
including residential, commercial, industrial, agricultural, forestry, mining, 
public and quasi-public, recreation, parks, open space, and vacant or 
undeveloped; and includes maps of current and desired future land use; and

8. a transportation element that considers transportation facilities, including 
major road improvements, new road construction, transit projects, pedestrian 
and bicycle projects, and other elements of the transportation network; and

9. a priority investment element that analyzes the likely federal, state, and local 
funds available for public infrastructure and facilities during the next ten 
years, and recommends the projects for expenditure of those funds during the 



next ten years for needed public infrastructure and facilities such as water, 
sewer, roads, and schools; and 

Whereas, a Community Survey was developed in an effort to solicit public input 
on a variety of growth, development and quality of life issues; and 

Whereas, the efforts of Sumter County Council, Sumter City-County Planning 
Commission and the staff of the Planning Department have resulted in a balanced 
Comprehensive Plan to guide future growth; and

Whereas, the Sumter City-County Planning Commission voted to recommend 
approval of the Comprehensive Plan to Sumter County Council on August 28, 2019; 
and

Whereas, a public hearing concerning the adoption of the Comprehensive Plan 
was held on October 22, 2019 after notice of the time and place of the public hearing 
was published in the Sumter Item newspaper at least 30 days prior to the hearing; and

Now, therefore be it resolved by Sumter County Council, having met the 
requirements of Chapter 29 of the South Carolina Local Government Comprehensive 
Planning Enabling Act of 1994, as amended, hereby adopts the Sumter 2040 
Comprehensive Plan.

Be if further resolved that the 2040 Sumter Comprehensive Plan shall be utilized 
by Sumter County Council, the Sumter City-County Planning Commission, and all 
County Departments, agencies and officials as the official policy guide for making 
decisions concerning the growth and development of Sumter County.

DONE RATIFIED AND ADOPTED BY THE CHAIRPERSON AND THE 
COUNTY COUNCIL OF THE COUNTY OF SUMTER, SOUTH CAROLINA, ON 
THIS ______________ DAY OF _________________, 2019.

COUNTY OF SUMTER, SOUTH CAROLINA

________________________________________
James T. McCain, Chairman

ATTEST:

________________________________
Mary Blanding

First Reading: 
Second reading:  



Public Hearing:  
Third Reading :  



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
RESOLUTION NUMBER R-19-04

COUNTY OF SUMTER

A RESOLUTION TO OPT OUT OF THE NATIONWIDE CLASS
CERTIFIED FOR NEGOTIATION PURPOSES IN

IN RE NATIONAL PRESCRIPTION OPIATE LITIGATION, MDL 2804

WHEREAS, Sumter County (the County) is a plaintiff in the consolidated South Carolina state 
court action In re: South Carolina Opioid Litigation and is represented in that action by John B. 
White, Jr. of Harrison White, PC (South Carolina Opioid Counsel);

WHEREAS, a class has been certified under Rule 23 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure (the 
Class) in the multidistrict litigation In Re: National Prescription Opiate Litigation that is intended 
to encourage and facilitate negotiations between opioid defendants and Class members;

WHEREAS, the Class encompasses all cities and counties in the United States, including the 
County;

WHEREAS, membership in the Class allows the County to share in any approved nationwide 
settlement reached with the Class (an Approved Settlement) and binds the County to any such 
settlement;

WHEREAS, opting out of the Class foregoes the County's right to share in an Approved 
Settlement and prevents the County from being bound by any such settlement;

WHEREAS, the deadline for opting out of the Class is November 22, 2019 (the Opt-Out 
Deadline), after which there is no guarantee that the County will be permitted to change its position 
relative to the class;

WHEREAS, the failure to affirmatively opt out of the class by the Opt-Out Deadline will result 
in the County remaining a member of the Class;

WHEREAS, the County recognizes that it could choose to be a member of the Class but desires 
to opt out of it;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Sumter County Council (the Council) that the 
County will opt out of membership in the Class.  BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the 
Council will sign the appropriate exclusion request form, thereby affirmatively opting out of the 



Class, and the Council's attorney shall communicate the Council's decision and deliver the 
exclusion request form to South Carolina Opioid Counsel as soon as is practicable after the 
adoption of this resolution, and by November 19, 2019 at the latest, to ensure the County's decision 
to opt out of the Class is effectuated.

Adopted this 12th day of November, 2019.

SUMTER COUNTY COUNCIL

James T. McCain, Jr., Chairman

Attest: Mary W. Blanding,
Clerk to Sumter County Council











ORDINANCE NO. 19-912

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING
THE TRANSFER OF PROPERTY ON WEDGEFIELD ROAD TO WEDGEFIELD 

BAPTIST CHURCH

WHEREAS, Sumter County owns property on Wedgefield Highway which has an address of 1 
Coulter Drive and is shown on the tax maps for Sumter County as parcel number 
099-06-04-006; and 

WHEREAS, Wedgefield Baptist Church is interested in purchasing the property to enhance its 
mission in that community; and

WHEREAS, Sumter County does not currently need the property for any public purpose,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNTY COUNCIL OF SUMTER 
COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA, AT ITS REGULAR MEETING DULY ASSEMBLED 
AND BY THE AUTHORITY THEREOF: 

That Sumter County enter into the Real Estate Purchase Contract which is attached hereto 
as Exhibit A, the terms of which are incorporated herein by reference.

This Ordinance shall be effective upon Third Reading.

Proceeds of the sale shall be distributed to the Sumter County Infrastructure Fund.

That the County Administrator is authorized to sign the Real Estate Purchase Contract, 
the deed and any other documents necessary to convey the property to the Buyer.

THE COUNTY COUNCIL FOR SUMTER COUNTY
SOUTH CAROLINA

BY: __________________________________                                                              
James T. McCain, Jr.

ITS: Chairman



ATTEST:

BY: ___________________________________                                                              
Mary W. Blanding

ITS: Clerk to County Council

First Reading: October 8, 2019.

Second Reading:  ________________, 2019.

Notice of Public Hearing published in
The Item:                                                    , 2019.

Public Hearing Held:                                               , 2019.

Third Reading and Adoption:                                  , 2019.







SUMTER COUNTY
ORDINANCE NO. 19-913

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING (1) THE EXECUTION AND 
DELIVERY OF A FEE IN LIEU OF TAX AND INCENTIVE 
AGREEMENT  BY AND BETWEEN SUMTER COUNTY, SOUTH 
CAROLINA (THE “COUNTY”) AND A COMPANY IDENTIFIED FOR 
THE TIME BEING AS PROJECT COMBINE, ACTING FOR ITSELF, 
ONE OR MORE AFFILIATES, AND/OR OTHER PROJECT SPONSORS 
(COLLECTIVELY, THE “COMPANY”), PURSUANT TO WHICH THE 
COUNTY SHALL COVENANT TO ACCEPT CERTAIN NEGOTIATED 
FEES IN LIEU OF AD VALOREM TAXES WITH RESPECT TO THE 
ESTABLISHMENT AND/OR EXPANSION OF CERTAIN FACILITIES 
IN THE COUNTY (THE “PROJECT”); (2) THE BENEFITS OF A 
MULTI-COUNTY INDUSTRIAL OR BUSINESS PARK TO BE MADE 
AVAILABLE TO THE COMPANY AND THE PROJECT; (3) CERTAIN 
SPECIAL SOURCE REVENUE CREDITS IN CONNECTION WITH 
THE PROJECT; AND (4) OTHER MATTERS RELATING THERETO.

WHEREAS, Sumter County, South Carolina (the “County”), acting by and through its 
County Council (the “Council”), is authorized and empowered under and pursuant to the 
provisions of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended (the “Code”), and particularly 
Title 12, Chapter 44 of the Code (the “Negotiated FILOT Act”) and Title 4, Chapter 1 of the Code 
(the “Multi-County Park Act” or, as to Section 4-1-175 thereof, the “Special Source Act”, and, 
together with the Negotiated FILOT Act, the “Act”) and by Article VIII, Section 13(D) of the 
South Carolina Constitution: (i) to enter into agreements with certain investors to construct, 
operate, maintain, and improve certain projects through which the economic development of the 
State of South Carolina (the “State”) will be promoted and trade developed by inducing 
manufacturing and commercial enterprises to locate and remain in the State and thus utilize and 
employ the manpower, agricultural products, and natural resources of the State; (ii) to covenant 
with such investors to accept certain fee in lieu of ad valorem tax (“FILOT”) payments, including, 
but not limited to, negotiated FILOT payments made pursuant to the Negotiated FILOT Act, with 
respect to a project; (iii) to permit investors to claim special source revenue credits against their 
FILOT payments (“Special Source Credits”) to reimburse such investors for expenditures in 
connection with infrastructure serving the County or improved or unimproved real estate and 
personal property including machinery and equipment used in the operation of a manufacturing or 
commercial enterprise in order to enhance the economic development of the County (“Special 
Source Improvements”); and (iv) to create, in conjunction with one or more other counties, a multi-
county industrial or business park in order to afford certain enhanced income tax credits to such 
investors and to facilitate the grant of Special Source Credits; and

WHEREAS, a company identified for the time being as Project Combine, acting for itself, 
one or more affiliates, and/or other project sponsors (collectively, the “Company”), is considering 
the establishment and/or expansion of certain manufacturing and related facilities at one or more 
locations in the County (the “Project”), and anticipates that, should its plans proceed as expected, 
they will invest, or caused to be invested, at least $26,000,000, in the aggregate, in the Project and 



2

will create, or cause to be created, at least 10 new, full-time jobs, in the aggregate, in the County; 
and

WHEREAS, based on information provided to the County by the Company, the County 
has determined that the Project will subserve the purposes of the Act and has made certain findings 
pertaining thereto in accordance with the Act; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with such findings and determinations, and in order to induce 
the Company to locate the Project in the County, the Council adopted a Resolution on October 8, 
2019 (the “Inducement Resolution”), whereby the County agreed to provide the benefits of a 
negotiated FILOT, a multi-county industrial or business park, and Special Source Credits with 
respect to the Project; and

WHEREAS, the County and the Company have agreed to specific terms and conditions of 
such arrangements as set forth herein and in a Fee in Lieu of Tax and Incentive Agreement by and 
among the County and the Company with respect to the Project (the “Incentive Agreement”), the 
form of which is presented to this meeting, which Incentive Agreement is to be dated as of 
__________, 2019, or such other date as the parties may agree; and 

WHEREAS, it appears that the Incentive Agreement now before this meeting is in 
appropriate form and is an appropriate instrument to be executed and delivered by the County for 
the purposes intended.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council, as follows:

Section 1. As contemplated by Section 12-44-40(I) of the Negotiated FILOT Act, the 
findings and determinations set forth in the Inducement Resolution are hereby ratified and 
confirmed.  In the event of any disparity or ambiguity between the terms and provisions of the 
Inducement Resolution and the terms and provisions of this Ordinance and the Incentive 
Agreement, the terms and provisions of this Ordinance and the Incentive Agreement shall control.  
Capitalized terms used and not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed thereto 
in the Incentive Agreement.  Additionally, based on information provided to the County by the 
Company with respect to the Project, the County makes the following findings and determinations:

(a) The Project will constitute a “project” within the meaning of the Negotiated 
FILOT Act; and

(b) The Project, and the County’s actions herein, will subserve the purposes of 
the Negotiated FILOT Act; and

(c) The Project is anticipated to benefit the general public welfare of the State 
and the County by providing services, employment, recreation, or other public benefits not 
otherwise adequately provided locally; and

(d) The Project gives rise to no pecuniary liability of the County or an 
incorporated municipality or a charge against the general credit or taxing power of either; 
and



3

(e) The purposes to be accomplished by the Project are proper governmental 
and public purposes; and

(f) The benefits of the Project are greater than the costs.

Section 2.

(a) The County hereby agrees to enter into the Incentive Agreement, which 
agreement shall be in the form of a fee agreement, pursuant to the Negotiated FILOT Act, 
whereby the Company will agree to satisfy, or cause to be satisfied, certain investment 
requirements with respect to the Project within certain prescribed time periods in 
accordance with the Negotiated FILOT Act and the County will agree to accept certain 
negotiated FILOT payments with respect to the Project (the “Negotiated FILOT”), as set 
forth in Section 2(b) hereof and in accordance with the terms of the Incentive Agreement.

(b)

(i) The Negotiated FILOT shall be determined using:  (1) an 
assessment ratio of 6%; (2) the lowest millage rate allowed with respect to 
the Project pursuant to Section 12-44-50(a)(1)(d) of the Negotiated FILOT 
Act as set forth in greater detail in the Incentive Agreement, which, based 
on the property comprising the Land as of the original execution and 
delivery of the Incentive Agreement is 350.6 mills, and which millage rate 
shall adjust every five (5) years pursuant to Section 12-44-50(A)(1)(b)(ii) 
of the Negotiated FILOT Act for the full term of the Negotiated FILOT, all 
as set forth in greater detail in the Incentive Agreement; (3) the fair market 
value of such Negotiated FILOT Property as determined in accordance with 
Section 12-44-50(A)(1)(c) of the Negotiated FILOT Act; and (4) and such 
other terms and conditions as are or will be specified in the Incentive 
Agreement including, but not limited to, that the Company and the Project 
shall be entitled to the maximum benefits allowable under the Negotiated 
FILOT Act with respect to the disposal and replacement of Project property.

(ii) The Negotiated FILOT shall be calculated as provided in this 
Section 2(b) for all Negotiated FILOT Property placed in service as part of 
the Project during the Investment Period.  For each annual increment of 
investment in Negotiated FILOT Property, the annual Negotiated FILOT 
payments shall be payable for a payment period of twenty (20) years.  
Accordingly, if such Negotiated FILOT Property is placed in service during 
more than one year, each year’s investment during the Investment Period 
shall be subject to the Negotiated FILOT for a payment period of twenty 
(20) years up to an aggregate of twenty-five (25) years or, if the Investment 
Period is extended as set forth in the Incentive Agreement, up to an 
aggregate of thirty (30) years.

Section 3. The County hereby represents and acknowledges that the property 
comprising the Land as of the original execution and delivery of the Incentive Agreement is located 



4

within the boundaries of the Multi-County Park established pursuant to the Multi-County Park Act 
and Article VIII, Section 13(D) of the State Constitution.  The County agrees to designate the 
Project as part of the Multi-County Park, if not already so designated, and agrees to maintain the 
Project within the boundaries of the Multi-County Park for the duration of the Incentive 
Agreement.  

Section 4. As an additional incentive to induce the Company to undertake the Project, 
and as reimbursement for investment in Special Source Improvements and subject to the 
requirements of the Special Source Act, the County hereby agrees, that each Credit Eligible Entity 
(as defined in the Incentive Agreement) shall be entitled to receive, and the County shall, subject 
to the provisions of the Incentive Agreement, provide, Special Source Credits against each FILOT 
Payment due from each such Credit Eligible Entity with respect to the Project for a period of five 
(5) consecutive tax years, commencing with the tax year for which the initial Negotiated FILOT 
payment is due with respect to the Project, in an annual amount equal to fifteen percent (15%) of 
each such FILOT payment.  In accordance with the Special Source Act, the Special Source Credits 
authorized herein shall not, in the aggregate, exceed the aggregate cost of Special Source 
Improvements funded from time to time in connection with the Project by the Company and all 
other Co-Investors.

Section 5. The form, provisions, terms, and conditions of the Incentive Agreement 
presented to this meeting and filed with the Clerk to Council are hereby approved, and all of the 
provisions, terms, and conditions thereof are hereby incorporated herein by reference as if the 
Incentive Agreement was set out in this Ordinance in its entirety.  The Chairman of the Council is 
hereby authorized, empowered, and directed to execute the Incentive Agreement in the name and 
on behalf of the County; the Clerk to Council is hereby authorized, empowered and directed to 
attest the same; and the Chairman of the Council is further authorized, empowered, and directed 
to deliver the Incentive Agreement to the Company.  The Incentive Agreement is to be in 
substantially the form now before this meeting and hereby approved, or with such changes therein 
as shall not materially adversely affect the rights of the County thereunder and as shall be approved 
by the official or officials of the County executing the same, upon the advice of counsel, their 
execution thereof to constitute conclusive evidence of their approval of any and all changes or 
revisions therein from the form of the Incentive Agreement now before this meeting.

Section 6. The Chairman of the Council, the County Administrator, and the Clerk to 
Council, for and on behalf of the County, are hereby each authorized, empowered, and directed to 
do any and all things necessary or proper to effect the performance of all obligations of the County 
under and pursuant to the Incentive Agreement. 

Section 7. The provisions of this Ordinance are hereby declared to be separable and if 
any section, phase, or provision shall for any reason be declared by a court of competent 
jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, such declaration shall not affect the validity of the 
remainder of the sections, phases, and provisions hereunder.

Section 8. All orders, ordinances, resolutions, and parts thereof in conflict herewith are 
to the extent of such conflict hereby repealed.  This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force 
from and after its passage and approval.



5

[End of Ordinance]



6

Enacted and approved, in meeting duly assembled, this ___ day of _________, 2019.

SUMTER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

By: __________________________________________
James T. McCain Jr., Chairman, County Council,
Sumter County, South Carolina

[SEAL]

Attest:

By: __________________________________________
Mary W. Blanding, Clerk to County Council,
Sumter County, South Carolina

First Reading: October 8, 2019
Second Reading:  November 12, 2019
Public Hearing:    ___________, 2019
Third Reading:     ___________, 2019



DRAFT 11/15/2019

FEE IN LIEU OF TAX AND INCENTIVE AGREEMENT

by and between

SUMTER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

and

PROJECT COMBINE COMPANY

Dated as of ________, 2019



TABLE OF CONTENTS
Page

i

ARTICLE I DEFINITIONS .................................................................................................2
Section 1.01. Definitions ..................................................................................................2
Section 1.02. References to Agreement............................................................................7

ARTICLE II REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES ................................................7
Section 2.01. Representations and Warranties by the County..........................................7
Section 2.02. Representations and Warranties by the Company ......................................8

ARTICLE III COVENANTS OF THE COUNTY..................................................................9
Section 3.01. Agreement to Accept Negotiated FILOT Payments...................................9
Section 3.02. Special Source Credits ................................................................................9
Section 3.03. Multi-County Park Designation................................................................10
Section 3.04. Commensurate Benefits............................................................................10

ARTICLE IV COVENANTS OF THE COMPANY ............................................................11
Section 4.01. Investment in Project. ...............................................................................11
Section 4.02. Failure to Satisfy Minimum Contractual Investment Requirement 

and/or Minimum Jobs Requirement .........................................................13
Section 4.03. Payment of Administration Expenses.......................................................14
Section 4.04. Use of Project for Lawful Activities.........................................................14
Section 4.05. Maintenance of Existence.........................................................................15
Section 4.06. Records and Reports .................................................................................16
Section 4.07. Funding for Special Source Improvements ..............................................17

ARTICLE V FEES IN LIEU OF TAXES............................................................................17
Section 5.01. Payment of Fees in Lieu of Ad Valorem Taxes .......................................17
Section 5.02. Statutory Lien ...........................................................................................22

ARTICLE VI THIRD PARTY ARRANGEMENTS ............................................................22
Section 6.01. Conveyance of Liens and Interests; Assignment......................................22
Section 6.02. Sponsors and Sponsor Affiliates...............................................................23

ARTICLE VII TERM; TERMINATION ...............................................................................23
Section 7.01. Term..........................................................................................................23
Section 7.02. Termination...............................................................................................23

ARTICLE VIII EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES .................................................24
Section 8.01. Events of Default ......................................................................................24
Section 8.02. Remedies on Event of Default ..................................................................24
Section 8.03. Defaulted Payments ..................................................................................25
Section 8.04. Default by the County...............................................................................25



TABLE OF CONTENTS
(continued)

Page

ii

ARTICLE IX MISCELLANEOUS.......................................................................................25
Section 9.01. Rights and Remedies Cumulative.............................................................25
Section 9.02. Successors and Assigns ............................................................................25
Section 9.03. Notices; Demands; Requests ....................................................................26
Section 9.04. Applicable Law.........................................................................................26
Section 9.05. Entire Understanding ................................................................................27
Section 9.06. Severability ...............................................................................................27
Section 9.07. Headings and Table of Contents; References ...........................................27
Section 9.08. Multiple Counterparts ...............................................................................27
Section 9.09. Amendments .............................................................................................27
Section 9.10. Waiver.......................................................................................................27
Section 9.11. Further Proceedings ..................................................................................27
Section 9.12.   Indemnification Covenants .......................................................................27
Section 9.13.   No Liability of County Personnel.............................................................28
Section 9.14.   Limitation of Liability ..............................................................................28

EXHIBIT A           LAND DESCRIPTION ...............................................................................A-1



1

FEE IN LIEU OF TAX AND INCENTIVE AGREEMENT

THIS FEE IN LIEU OF TAX AND INCENTIVE AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) dated 
as of _______ __, 2019, by and between SUMTER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA (the 
“County”), a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision of the State of South Carolina, 
and a company identified for the time being as PROJECT COMBINE, acting for itself, one or 
more affiliates, and/or other project sponsors (the “Company”).

W I T N E S S E T H:

WHEREAS, the County, acting by and through its County Council (the “Council”), is 
authorized and empowered under and pursuant to the provisions of the Code of Laws of South 
Carolina 1976, as amended (the “Code”), particularly Title 12, Chapter 44 of the Code (the 
“Negotiated FILOT Act”) and Title 4, Chapter 1 of the Code (the “Multi-County Park Act” or, as 
to Section 4-1-175 thereof, the “Special Source Act”, and, together with the Negotiated FILOT 
Act, the “Act”) and by Article VIII, Section 13(D) of the South Carolina Constitution: (i) to enter 
into agreements with certain investors to construct, operate, maintain, and improve certain projects 
through which the economic development of the State of South Carolina (the “State”) will be 
promoted and trade developed by inducing manufacturing and commercial enterprises to locate 
and remain in the State and thus utilize and employ the manpower, agricultural products, and 
natural resources of the State; (ii) to covenant with such investors to accept certain fee in lieu of 
ad valorem tax (“FILOT”) payments, including, but not limited to, negotiated FILOT payments 
made pursuant to the Negotiated FILOT Act, with respect to a project; (iii) to permit investors to 
claim special source revenue credits against their FILOT payments (“Special Source Credits”) to 
reimburse such investors for expenditures in connection with infrastructure serving the County or 
improved or unimproved real estate and personal property including machinery and equipment 
used in the operation of a manufacturing or commercial enterprise in order to enhance the 
economic development of the County (“Special Source Improvements”); and (iv) to create, in 
conjunction with one or more other counties, a multi-county industrial or business park in order to 
afford certain enhanced income tax credits to such investors and to facilitate the grant of Special 
Source Credits; and

WHEREAS, the Company is considering the establishment and/or expansion of certain 
manufacturing and related facilities at one or more locations in the County (the “Project”), and 
anticipates that, should its plans proceed as expected, it will invest, or cause to be invested, in the 
aggregate, at least $26,000,000 in the Project and will create, or cause to be created, in the 
aggregate, at least 10 new, full-time jobs within the County, all by the end of the Compliance 
Period (as defined herein) as set forth in greater detail herein; and

WHEREAS, the County has determined that the Project will subserve the purposes of the 
Act and has made certain findings pertaining thereto in accordance with the Act; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with such findings and determinations and in order to induce 
the Company to locate the Project in the County, the Council adopted a Resolution on October 8, 
2019 (the “Inducement Resolution”), whereby the County agreed to provide the benefits of a 



2

negotiated FILOT, a multi-county industrial or business park, and Special Source Credits with 
respect to the Project, the terms of all of which are set forth in greater detail in this Agreement; 
and

WHEREAS, the County has determined that it is in the best interests of the County to enter 
into this Agreement with the Company, subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein, and, 
by Ordinance No. 19-913 enacted by the Council on __________, 2019, approved the form, terms 
and conditions of this Agreement and ratified all prior actions taken with respect to the Project.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, the mutual covenants contained 
herein, the above recitals which are incorporated herein by reference, the potential investment to 
be made, or caused to be made, and the potential jobs to be created, or caused to be created, by the 
Company which contribute to the tax base and the economic welfare of the County, the respective 
representations and agreements hereinafter contained, and for other good and valuable 
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the County and the 
Company agree as follows:

ARTICLE I

DEFINITIONS

Section 1.01. Definitions.  In addition to the words and terms elsewhere defined in this 
Agreement, the following words and terms as used herein and in the preambles hereto shall have 
the following meanings unless the context or use indicates another or different meaning or intent.

“Act” shall mean, collectively, the Negotiated FILOT Act and the Multi-County Park Act, 
including, without limitation, the Special Source Act.

“Administration Expenses” shall mean the reasonable and necessary expenses incurred by 
the County in the fulfillment of its obligations under this Agreement and in the implementation of 
its terms and provisions, including reasonable and necessary attorney’s fees at the hourly rates 
which are standard for the applicable legal services to the County, but excluding any expenses 
incurred by the County in defending either challenges to the incentives provided herein by third 
parties or suits brought by the Company or any other Co-Investor under Section 8.04 hereof; 
provided, however, that no such expense shall be considered an Administration Expense unless 
the Company, or other Co-Investor, required to pay such expense hereunder, shall have first 
agreed, prior to the County incurring such expense, as to the maximum amount thereof or as to the 
basis for which such expenses will be incurred, and the County shall have furnished to such 
Company, or such other Co-Investor, as the case may be, an itemized statement of all such 
expenses incurred. 

“Affiliate” shall mean any corporation, limited liability company, partnership or other 
Person or entity which now or hereafter owns all or part of the Company or any other Co-Investor, 
as the case may be, or which is now or hereafter owned in whole or in part by the Company or any 
other Co-Investor, as the case may be, or by any partner, shareholder or owner of the Company or 



3

any other Co-Investor, as the case may be, and shall also include any subsidiary, affiliate or other 
Person, individual, or entity who now or hereafter bears a relationship to the Company or any other 
Co-Investor, as the case may be, as described in Section 267(b) of the Internal Revenue Code.

“Agreement” shall mean this Fee in Lieu of Tax and Incentive Agreement as originally 
executed and from time to time supplemented or amended as permitted herein.

“Code” shall mean the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended, unless the 
context clearly requires otherwise.

“Co-Investor” shall mean the Company, any other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate within the 
meaning of Sections 12-44-30(19) and (20) of the Negotiated FILOT Act. As of the date of the 
original execution and delivery of this Agreement, the Company is the only Co-Investor.

“Company” shall mean a company identified for the time being as Project Combine, and 
any surviving, resulting, or transferee entity in any merger, consolidation or transfer of assets 
permitted under Sections 4.05 or 6.01 hereof or any other assignee or transferee hereunder which 
is designated by the Company and approved by the County.

“Compliance Period” shall mean the period commencing with the first day that Negotiated 
FILOT Property is purchased or acquired, whether before or after the date of this Agreement, and 
ending on the fifth anniversary of the end of the Property Tax Year in which the initial Negotiated 
FILOT Property comprising all or a portion of the Project is placed in service, all as specified in 
Section 12-44-30(13) of the Negotiated FILOT Act.  It is presently anticipated, but not required, 
that the initial Negotiated FILOT Property comprising all or a portion of the Project will be placed 
in service in the Property Tax Year ending on December 31, 2020, and, in such event, the 
Compliance Period will end on December 31, 2025. 

“County” shall mean Sumter County, South Carolina, a body politic and corporate and a 
political subdivision of the State, and its successors and assigns.

“Council” shall mean the governing body of the County and its successors.

“Credit Eligible Entity” shall have the meaning specified in Section 3.02(a) hereof.

“Deficiency Payment” shall have the meaning specified in Section 5.01(e) hereof.

“Department of Revenue” shall mean the South Carolina Department of Revenue and any 
successor thereof.

“Event of Default” shall mean an Event of Default, as set forth in Section 8.01 hereof.

“Existing Property” shall mean property which will not qualify for the Negotiated FILOT 
pursuant to Section 12-44-110 of the Negotiated FILOT Act, including, without limitation, 
property which has been subject to ad valorem taxes in the State prior to commencement of the 



4

Investment Period and property included in the Project as part of the repair, alteration, or 
modification of such previously taxed property; provided, however, that Existing Property shall 
not include: (a) the Land; (b) property acquired or constructed by or on behalf of the Company or 
any other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate during the Investment Period which has not been placed in 
service in this State prior to the commencement of the Investment Period notwithstanding that ad 
valorem taxes have heretofore been paid with respect to such property, or property which has been 
placed in service in the State pursuant to an inducement agreement or other preliminary approval 
by the County, including the Inducement Resolution, prior to execution of this Agreement pursuant 
to Section 12-44-40(E) of the Negotiated FILOT Act, which property shall qualify as Negotiated 
FILOT Property; (c) property purchased by or on behalf of the Company or any other Sponsor or 
Sponsor Affiliate during the Investment Period in a transaction other than between any of the 
entities specified in Section 267(b) of the Internal Revenue Code, as defined under Chapter 6 of 
Title 12 of the Code as of the time of the transfer, to the extent that the Company or such other 
Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate invests at least an additional $45,000,000 in the Project, exclusive of 
the property identified in this subsection (c); or (d) modifications which constitute an expansion 
of the real property portion of Existing Property.

“FILOT” shall mean fee in lieu of ad valorem property taxes.  

“FILOT Payment” or “FILOT Payments” shall mean the FILOT payments to be made by 
the Company or any other Co-Investor with respect to the Project, whether made as Negotiated 
FILOT Payments pursuant to Section 5.01 hereof or as FILOT payments made pursuant to the 
Multi-County Park Act.

“Investment Period” shall initially mean a period equal to the Compliance Period; 
provided, however, that, if the Minimum Contractual Investment Requirement is satisfied by the 
end of the Compliance Period, the Investment Period shall be automatically extended, without 
further action or proceedings of the County or the Council, by five (5) years beyond the 
Compliance Period to end on the tenth (10th) anniversary of the end of the Property Tax Year in 
which the initial Negotiated FILOT Property comprising all or a portion of the Project is placed in 
service, all in accordance with Section 12-44-30(13) of the Negotiated FILOT Act; provided 
further that there shall be no extension of the period for meeting the Minimum Statutory 
Investment Requirement beyond the Compliance Period, all determined as specified in Section 12-
44-30(13) of the Negotiated FILOT Act.  In the event that the initial Negotiated FILOT Property 
comprising all or a portion of the Project is, as presently anticipated, placed in service in the 
Property Tax Year ending on December 31, 2020, upon any such extension, the Investment Period 
will end on December 31, 2030.

“Land” shall mean the land upon which the Project has been or will be acquired, 
constructed and equipped, as described on Exhibit A attached hereto, as Exhibit A may be revised, 
modified, or supplemented from time to time in accordance with the provisions hereof.

“Minimum Contractual Investment Requirement” shall mean investment in Negotiated 
FILOT Property, within the period commencing on the first day that Negotiated FILOT Property 
is purchased or acquired, whether before or after the date of this Agreement, and ending at the end 



5

of Compliance Period, by the Company and all Co-Investors, in the aggregate, of at least 
$26,000,000 (without regard to depreciation or other diminution in value), as reported by the 
Company and any Co-Investors, if any, on their respective PT-300S form or comparable forms 
filed with the Department of Revenue. 

“Minimum Jobs Requirement” shall mean the creation of at least 10 new, full-time jobs in 
the County by the Company and all Co-Investors, in the aggregate, within the period commencing 
on [January 1, 2019] and ending at the end of the Compliance Period.

“Minimum Statutory Investment Requirement” shall mean investment in the Project of not 
less than $2,500,000 within the Compliance Period, as set forth in by Section 12-44-30(14) of the 
Negotiated FILOT Act, which investment amount shall be calculated in accordance with, and 
subject to, Section 12-44-130 of the Negotiated FILOT Act. 

 “Multi-County Park” shall mean the multi-county industrial or business park established 
pursuant to the Multi-County Park Act and the Multi-County Park Agreement, and any multi-
county industrial or business park which now or hereafter includes the Project and which is 
designated by the County as such pursuant to any agreement, which supersedes or replaces the 
initial Multi-County Park Agreement.

“Multi-County Park Act” shall mean Title 4, Chapter 1 of the Code.

“Multi-County Park Agreement” shall mean that certain Master Agreement governing the 
Sumter-Lee Industrial Park by and between the County and Lee County, South Carolina dated as 
of December 31, 2012 as supplemented, modified or amended, and, as such agreement may be 
further supplemented, modified, amended, or replaced from time to time.

“Negotiated FILOT” or “Negotiated FILOT Payments” shall mean the FILOT payments 
due pursuant to Section 5.01 hereof with respect to that portion of the Project consisting of 
Negotiated FILOT Property qualifying under the Negotiated FILOT Act for the negotiated 
assessment ratio and millage rate or rates described in Section 5.01(b)(ii) hereof.

“Negotiated FILOT Act” shall mean Title 12, Chapter 44 of the Code.

“Negotiated FILOT Property” shall mean all Project property qualifying for the 
Negotiated FILOT as “economic development property” within the meaning of Section 12-44-
30(6) of the Negotiated FILOT Act, including, without limitation, each item of real and tangible 
personal property comprising the Project which is placed in service during the Investment Period 
and which meets the requirements of Sections 12-44-30(6) and 12-44-40(C) of the Negotiated 
FILOT Act, together with all Replacement Property, but excluding any Non-Qualifying Property, 
and any Released Property.  

“Non-Qualifying Property” shall mean that portion of the real and personal property 
located on the Land, which does not qualify as Negotiated FILOT Property, such Non-Qualifying 
Property to include: (i) Existing Property; (ii) except as to Replacement Property, property which 



6

the Company or any other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate places in service after the end of the 
Investment Period; and (iii) any other property which fails or ceases to qualify for Negotiated 
FILOT Payments under the Negotiated FILOT Act or under this Agreement, including without 
limitation property as to which the Company or any other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate has 
terminated the Negotiated FILOT pursuant to Section 4.01(d)(iii) hereof.

“Person” shall mean and include any individual, association, unincorporated organization, 
corporation, partnership, limited liability company, joint venture, or government or agency or 
political subdivision thereof.

“Project” shall mean: (i) the Land and all buildings, structures, fixtures and other real 
property improvements now or hereafter constructed on the Land; (ii) all machinery, equipment, 
furnishings and other personal property now or hereafter acquired by or on behalf of the Company 
or any other Co-Investors for use on or about the Land; and (iii) any Replacement Property; 
provided, however, except as to Replacement Property, the term Project shall be deemed to include 
any such real property improvements and personal property, whether now existing or hereafter 
constructed, improved, acquired or equipped, only to the extent placed in service within a period 
commencing on January 1, 2019 and ending at the end of the Investment Period.

“Property Tax Year” shall mean the annual period which is equal to the fiscal year of the 
Company, or any other Co-Investor, as the case may be, i.e., with respect to the Company, the 
annual period ending on December 31 of each year.

“Released Property” shall include property which was initially Negotiated FILOT 
Property but which is scrapped, sold, disposed of, or released from this Agreement by the Company 
or any other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate pursuant to Section 4.01(d) hereof and Section 12-44-
50(B) of the Negotiated FILOT Act, any portion of the Negotiated FILOT Property constituting 
infrastructure which the Company or any other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate dedicates to the public 
use within the meaning of Section 12-6-3420(C) of the Code, or property which is damaged, 
destroyed, or taken by process of eminent domain and not restored or replaced.

“Replacement Property” shall mean all property placed in service on the Land in 
substitution of, or as replacement for, any Negotiated FILOT Property which becomes Released 
Property, regardless of whether such property serves the same function as the property it replaces 
and regardless of whether more than one piece of such property replaces a single piece of the 
Negotiated FILOT Property, to the maximum extent that such property may be included in the 
calculation of the Negotiated FILOT pursuant to Section 5.01(d) hereof and Section 12-44-60 of 
the Negotiated FILOT Act.

“Special Source Act” shall mean Section 4-1-175 of the Code.

“Special Source Credits” shall mean the special source revenue credits described in 
Section 3.02 hereof.



7

“Special Source Improvements” shall mean to the extent paid for by the Company or any 
other Co-Investor, any infrastructure serving the economic development of the County and any 
improved or unimproved real property, buildings, structural components of buildings, fixtures, or 
other real property improvements and, upon the written election of the Company to the County, 
(effective as of the election date set forth in the written election, whether before or after the date 
of the written election) personal property, including machinery and equipment, used in the 
operation of a manufacturing or commercial enterprise in order to enhance the economic 
development of the County, all as set forth in the Special Source Act. [For purposes of this 
Agreement, Special Source Improvements shall initially be deemed to include, without 
limitation, all roadwork, water, sewer, drainage, power and utility facilities serving the 
Project, as well as the Land, the buildings, fixtures and other real property improvements 
on the Land, and any additions or improvements to any of the foregoing, whether paid for 
by the Company or any Co-Investors directly or through lease payments.]

“Sponsor” and “Sponsor Affiliate” shall mean an entity whose investment with respect to 
the Project will qualify for the Negotiated FILOT pursuant to Section 6.02 hereof and Sections 
12-44-30(19) or (20) and Section 12-44-130 of the Negotiated FILOT Act if the statutory 
investment requirements are met.  As of the original execution and delivery of the Agreement, the 
only Sponsor is the Company and there are no Sponsor Affiliates.

“State” shall mean the State of South Carolina.

“Term” shall mean the term of this Agreement, as set forth in Section 7.01 hereof.

“Transfer Provisions” shall mean the provisions of Section 12-44-120 of the Negotiated 
FILOT Act.

Section 1.02. References to Agreement.  The words “hereof”, “herein”, “hereunder”, and 
other words of similar import refer to this Agreement as a whole.

ARTICLE II

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

Section 2.01. Representations and Warranties by County.  The County makes the 
following representations and warranties as the basis for the undertakings on its part herein 
contained:

(a) The County is a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision of the 
State and is authorized and empowered by the provisions of the Act to enter into the 
transactions contemplated by this Agreement and to carry out its obligations hereunder. By 
proper action by the Council, the County has duly authorized the execution and delivery of 
this Agreement and has duly approved the Negotiated FILOT, the Special Source Credits, 
and the inclusion and maintenance of the Project in the Multi-County Park, all as set forth 



8

herein, as well as any and all actions reasonably necessary and appropriate to consummate 
the transactions contemplated hereby.

(b) On the basis of information supplied to it by the Company, the County has 
determined the Project will subserve the purposes of the Act and has made all other findings 
of fact required by the Act in connection with the undertaking of the arrangements set forth 
herein.

(c) This Agreement has been duly authorized, executed and delivered on behalf 
of the County.  The authorization, execution, and delivery of this Agreement and the 
performance by the County of its obligations hereunder will not, to the best knowledge of 
the County, conflict with or constitute a breach of, or a default under, any South Carolina 
law, court or administrative regulation, decree, order, provision of the Constitution or laws 
of the State relating to the establishment of the County or its affairs, or any material 
agreement, mortgage, lease, or other instrument to which the County is subject or by which 
it is bound, nor, to the best knowledge of the County, any existing law or the provisions of 
the Constitution of the State.

(d) To the best knowledge of the County, no actions, suits, proceedings, 
inquiries, or investigations are pending or threatened against or affecting the County in any 
court or before any governmental authority or arbitration board or tribunal, any of which 
to the best knowledge of the County could materially adversely affect this Agreement or 
which could, in any way, adversely affect the validity or enforceability of this Agreement 
or the transactions contemplated hereby.

Section 2.02. Representations and Warranties by the Company.  The Company makes the 
following representations and warranties as the basis for the undertakings on its part herein 
contained:

(a) The Company is a ___________ validly existing and in good standing under 
the laws of the State of ___________and is authorized to do business in the State of 
___________, has all requisite power to enter into this Agreement and to carry out its 
obligations hereunder, and by proper action has been duly authorized to execute and deliver 
this Agreement.  The Company’s fiscal year end is December 31 and the Company will 
notify the County of any changes in the fiscal year of the Company.

(b) The Company intends to operate the Project as manufacturing and related 
facilities primarily for the manufacture of ___________.

(c) The agreements with the County with respect to the Negotiated FILOT, the 
Special Source Credits, and the Multi-County Park, as set forth herein, were factors in 
inducing the Company to locate the Project within the County and the State.

(d) To the best knowledge of the Company, no actions, suits, proceedings, 
inquiries, or investigations are pending or threatened against or affecting the Company in 



9

any court or before any governmental authority or arbitration board or tribunal, which 
would materially adversely affect this Agreement or which would, in any way, adversely 
affect the validity or enforceability of this Agreement, or the transactions contemplated 
hereby.

(e) The Company has retained legal counsel to advise, or has had a reasonable 
opportunity to consult legal counsel to advise, of its eligibility for the Negotiated FILOT 
and other incentives granted by this Agreement and has not relied on the County, its 
officials, employees or legal representatives with respect to any question of eligibility or 
applicability of the Negotiated FILOT and other incentives granted by this Agreement.

ARTICLE III

COVENANTS OF COUNTY

Section 3.01. Agreement to Accept Negotiated FILOT Payments.  The County hereby 
agrees to accept Negotiated FILOT Payments in accordance with the provisions of Section 5.01 
hereof in lieu of ad valorem taxes with respect to that portion of the Project consisting of 
Negotiated FILOT Property until this Agreement expires or is sooner terminated.

Section 3.02. Special Source Credits.  

(a) As reimbursement for investment in Special Source Improvements and 
subject to the requirements of the Special Source Act and Section 4.02 hereof, the County 
hereby agrees that the Company and each other Co-Investor (each, a “Credit Eligible 
Entity”) shall be entitled to receive, and the County shall provide, Special Source Credits 
against each FILOT Payment due from each such Credit Eligible Entity with respect to the 
Project for a period of five (5) consecutive tax years, commencing with the initial tax year 
for which a Negotiated FILOT Payment is due with respect to the Project, in an annual 
amount equal to fifteen percent (15%) of each such FILOT Payment.  In accordance with 
the Special Source Act, the Special Source Credits authorized herein shall not, in the 
aggregate, exceed the aggregate cost of Special Source Improvements funded from time to 
time in connection with the Project by the Company and all other Credit Eligible Entities.

(b) The Special Source Credits to which a Credit Eligible Facility is entitled for 
each tax year of the period set forth in Section 3.02(a) hereof shall be reflected by the 
County on each bill sent by the County to such Credit Eligible Entity for each FILOT 
Payment due from such Credit Eligible Entity with respect to each such tax year, by 
reducing the total original FILOT Payment amount otherwise due from such Credit Eligible 
Entity for such tax year by the amount of Special Source Credits to which such Credit 
Eligible Entity is entitled for such tax year.

Section 3.03. Multi-County Park Designation.  The County hereby represents and 
acknowledges that the property comprising the Land as of the original execution and delivery of 
the Incentive Agreement is located within the boundaries of the Multi-County Park. The County 



10

agrees to designate the Project as part of a Multi-County Park, if not already so designated, and 
agrees to use its best, commercially reasonable efforts to maintain the Project within the boundaries 
of the Multi-County Park for the duration of this Agreement pursuant to the provisions of the 
Multi-County Park Act and Article VIII, Section 13(D) of the State Constitution. The County 
hereby further agrees to take such further actions as may be necessary to effect any such initial or 
continued Multi-County Park designation under and pursuant to the Multi-County Park 
Agreement.

Section 3.04. Commensurate Benefits.  The parties acknowledge the intent of this 
Agreement, in part, is to afford the Company and each other Co-Investor the benefits specified in 
this Article III in consideration of the Company’s decision to locate the Project within the County, 
and this Agreement has been entered into in reliance upon the enactment of the Act and the 
County’s compliance with the requirements thereof.  In the event that a court of competent 
jurisdiction holds that the Act is, in whole or in part, unconstitutional or this Agreement, the Multi-
County Park Agreement, or agreements similar in nature to this Agreement or the Multi-County 
Park Agreement are invalid or unenforceable in any material respect, or should the Company 
determine there is a reasonable doubt as to the validity or enforceability of this Agreement or the 
Multi-County Park Agreement in any material respect, then at the request of the Company, the 
County agrees to use its best efforts, and to take such other steps as may be necessary, to extend 
to the Company and each other Co-Investor the intended benefits of this Agreement, including, 
but not limited to, the Negotiated FILOT and the Special Source Credits and agrees, if requested 
by the Company, to enter into a lease purchase agreement with the Company and each other Co-
Investor pursuant to Section 12-44-160 of the Negotiated FILOT Act and Title 4, Chapter 29 or 
Title 4, Chapter 12 of the Code, as applicable, the terms of which shall be mutually agreeable to 
the County and the Company. In furtherance of this covenant, the County also agrees that, in the 
event that, for any reason, the Multi-County Park is declared by a court of competent jurisdiction 
to be invalid or unenforceable in whole or in part, the Company and the County express their 
intentions that tax or FILOT payments be reformed so as to best afford the Company and each 
other Co-Investor benefits commensurate with, but not in excess of, those intended under this 
Agreement, including, but not limited to, the Special Source Credits, as then permitted by law, 
including, without limitation, any benefits afforded under Title 12, Chapter 6, Title 4, Chapter 1 
and Title 4, Chapter 29 of the Code, as applicable, to the extent allowed by law.  

ARTICLE IV

COVENANTS OF THE COMPANY

Section 4.01. Investment in Project.

(a) The Company hereby agrees to acquire, construct, equip, or improve or 
cause to be acquired, constructed, equipped, or improved, the Project, as the same shall be 
determined from time to time by the Company in its sole discretion.  As required by Section 
12-44-30(2) of the Negotiated FILOT Act, at least a portion of the Negotiated FILOT 
Property comprising the Project shall be placed in service no later than the end of the 



11

Property Tax Year which is three years from the year in which this Agreement is entered, 
i.e., the Property Tax Year ending on December 31, 2022.

(b) Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, and to the maximum 
extent permitted by law, investment in Negotiated FILOT Property and job creation in the 
County at the Project by any and all other permitted Co-Investors shall together with 
investment in Negotiated FILOT Property and job creation in the County at the Project by 
the Company, count toward achievement of the Minimum Jobs Requirement, and, to the 
full extent permitted by the Negotiated FILOT Act, the Minimum Statutory Investment 
Requirement.  Aggregate investment shall generally be determined by reference to the 
property tax returns of the Company and each other Co-Investor filed with respect to the 
Project, including without limitation, each such entity’s assets listed on a SCDOR PT-300 
or such comparable forms, as the Department of Revenue may provide in connection with 
projects under the Act, without regard to depreciation or other diminution in value. 

(c) Subject to the provision of Sections 4.05 and 6.01 hereof, the Company and 
each other Co-Investor shall, retain title to, or other property rights in, its respective portion 
of the Project throughout the Term of this Agreement, and the Company and each other 
Co-Investor shall have full right to mortgage, lease, or encumber all or any portion of the 
Project, including without limitation, in connection with any financing transactions, all 
without the consent of the County.

(d) The Company and each other Co-Investor shall have the right at any time 
and from time to time during the Term hereof to undertake any of the following:

(i) The Company and each other Co-Investor may, at its own 
expense, add to the Project all such real and personal property as the Company, 
or such other Co-Investor, in its discretion deems useful or desirable, 
including, without limitation, Negotiated FILOT Property, without any limit 
as to the amount thereof.

(ii) Subject to the provisions of Section 5.01(f)(iii) hereof, in any 
instance when the Company or any other Co-Investor, in its discretion, 
determines any property included in the Project, including without limitation, 
any Negotiated FILOT Property, has become inadequate, obsolete, worn out, 
unsuitable, undesirable, or unnecessary for operations at the Project, the 
Company or such other Co-Investor may remove such property from the 
Project and sell, trade in, exchange, or otherwise dispose of them as a whole 
or in part without the consent of the County.

(iii) The Company and each other Co-Investor may, at any time and 
in its discretion by written notice to the County, remove any Project property 
including, but not limited to, Negotiated FILOT Property, real or personal, 
from the Project or from the provisions of this Agreement including, but not 
limited to, the Negotiated FILOT arrangement set forth in this Agreement and 



12

retain such property for use as part of its operations in the County, whether or 
not such property remains as part of the Project, and effective as of the date of 
any such removal, such property will be subject to ad valorem taxes, or to 
FILOT payments pursuant to the Multi-County Park Act, as the case may be; 
provided, that, any such notice requirement may be, but shall not be required 
to be, satisfied by property tax returns filed with respect to the Project and any 
other such property, including without limitation, such entity’s SCDOR PT-
300 or such comparable forms, as the Department of Revenue may provide in 
connection with projects under the Act, and in such event, any such removal 
reflected by any such return shall be deemed to be effective as of the date of 
such removal.

(iv) If the Company or any other Co-Investor sells, leases, or 
otherwise disposes of any portion of, or adds to, the Land, or removes any 
portion of the Land from the Project while retaining such property for use as 
part of its operations in the County, all as permitted herein, the Company or 
such Co-Investor shall deliver to the County a revised Exhibit A to this 
Agreement or supplements to Exhibit A reflecting any such addition, disposal 
or removal and such revised or supplemented Exhibit A shall, effective as of 
the date of any such transaction, addition, disposal, or removal, be 
automatically made a part of this Agreement without further action or 
proceedings by the County or the Council; provided, that any requirement to 
provide such schedules or supplements to the County may be satisfied by 
property tax returns filed with respect to the Project and any other such 
property, including without limitation, such entity’s SCDOR PT-300 or such 
comparable forms, as the Department of Revenue may provide in connection 
with projects under the Negotiated FILOT Act, and in such event, any such 
addition, disposal, or removal reflected by any such return, shall be 
automatically deemed effective as of the date of any such addition, disposal, 
or removal.

(v) All Negotiated FILOT Property sold or otherwise disposed of 
under this Section shall be deemed Released Property for purposes of this 
Agreement.

Section 4.02. Failure to Satisfy Minimum Contractual Investment Requirement and/or 
Minimum Jobs Requirement.  If either or both of the Minimum Contractual Investment 
Requirement and the Minimum Jobs Requirement are not satisfied by the end of the Compliance 
Period, each of the following subsections (a) – (c) shall apply:

(a) The Company and each other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate shall continue 
to be eligible for the Negotiated FILOT described in Section 5.01 hereof so long as the 
Minimum Statutory Investment Requirement is nevertheless satisfied by the end of the 
Compliance Period.



13

(b) On behalf of each Credit Eligible Entity, the Company shall, to the extent 
required by the below provisions of this Section 4.02(b), reimburse the County for any 
Special Source Credits previously received, or to be received (upon actual receipt), by each 
such Credit Eligible Entity for each tax year for which each such Credit Eligible Entity is 
entitled to receive Special Source Credits under Section 3.02(a) hereof and for which a 
Negotiated FILOT Payment has been, or will be, due to be paid without penalty with 
respect to the Project on or before the January 15 immediately following the end of the 
Compliance Period (collectively, the “Compliance Period Special Source Credits”), taking 
into account (i) the highest level of aggregate investment in Negotiated FILOT Property 
comprising the Project (without regard to depreciation or other diminution in value) within 
the Compliance Period at any time during the Compliance Period (the “Actual Project 
Investment”), as compared to the Minimum Contractual Investment Requirement, (ii) the 
highest number of new, full-time jobs created, in the aggregate, at the Project within the 
period set forth in the Minimum Jobs Requirement at any time during such period (the 
“Actual Project Jobs”), as compared to the Minimum Jobs Requirement, and (iii) a 
weighting of 1/2 investment and 1/2 jobs; provided, in the event that the Actual Project 
Investment exceeds the Minimum Contractual Investment Requirement or the Actual 
Project Jobs exceeds the Minimum Jobs Requirement, the percentage of any such surplus 
shall be applied to offset any shortfall in the satisfaction of the other such requirement, as 
the case may be, in accordance with the weighing set forth in subsection (iii) above, all as 
further detailed and illustrated in the formula and examples set forth below:

Formula:

1. Actual Project Investment = Investment Satisfaction Percentage [ISP]
$26,000,000

2. 100% - ISP = Investment Satisfaction Factor [ISF]

3. Actual Project Jobs = Jobs Satisfaction Percentage [JSP]
10 new, full-time jobs

           
4. 100% - JSP = Jobs Satisfaction Factor [JSF]

5. ISF + JSF = Final Satisfaction Factor [FSF]
               2

6. In the event that determination of the Final Satisfaction Factor results in a positive 
percentage figure, the Final Satisfaction Factor shall be applied to the Compliance 
Period Special Source Credits received, or to be received (upon actual receipt), by 
each Credit Eligible Entity as set forth above to determine reimbursement amounts 
due to the County, if any, from the Company.  Any such amounts shall be due to 



14

be paid by the Company within sixty (60) days of receipt by the Company of written 
notice from the County of such amounts being due with respect to the Project. 

(c) Each Credit Eligible Entity may continue to be eligible for Special Source 
Credits against each FILOT Payment due from such Credit Eligible Entity with respect to 
the Project for the remaining tax years of the period set forth in Section 3.02(a) hereof; 
provided, however, in the event that determination of the Final Satisfaction Factor pursuant 
to Section 4.02(b) hereof results in a positive percentage figure, the initial Special Source 
Credits percentage set forth in Section 3.02(a) hereof of fifteen percent (15%) shall be 
reduced for the remaining such tax years in the discretion of the County.

Section 4.03. Payment of Administration Expenses.  The Company or any other Co-
Investor will reimburse, or cause reimbursement of, the County from time to time for the County’s 
Administration Expenses incurred in the fulfillment of its obligations hereunder, or in the 
implementation of this Agreement’s terms and provisions, with respect to the Company or such 
other Co-Investor, respectively, promptly upon written request therefor, but in no event later than 
ninety (90) days after receiving written notice from the County specifying the nature of such 
expense and requesting the payment of the same.  The County acknowledges that it imposes no 
charges in the nature of impact fees or recurring fees in connection with the Project or the 
incentives authorized by this Agreement, and, aside from the attorneys’ fees set forth below, the 
County anticipates no out of pocket expenses in connection with this Agreement and the 
transactions authorized hereby.  The parties understand that the County has incurred, and will 
incur, legal fees and other expenses for review of the Inducement Resolution, this Agreement, the 
Multi-County Park Agreement and all resolutions, ordinances and other documentation related 
thereto in an amount not to exceed $5,000.

Section 4.04. Use of Project for Lawful Activities.  During the Term of this Agreement, 
the Company and each other Co-Investor may use the Project as it deems fit for any lawful purpose.

Section 4.05. Maintenance of Existence.  Except in the event the resulting, surviving or 
transferee entity is the Company or an Affiliate of the Company, as to which such consolidation, 
merger, or transfer, the County hereby preapproves and consents, unless the County shall provide 
prior consent or subsequent ratification otherwise, which consent or ratification shall not be 
unreasonably withheld, conditioned, or delayed, the Company covenants that it will maintain its 
separate existence and will not dissolve or consolidate with, merge into or transfer, or otherwise 
dispose of substantially all of its property to any other entity or permit one or more other entities 
to consolidate with or merge into it or purchase substantially all of its property unless:  

(a) the Company shall be the continuing business entity, or the business entity 
formed by such consolidation or into which the Company is merged or the entity which 
acquires by conveyance or transfer all or substantially all of the Company’s assets shall (i) 
be an entity organized and existing under the laws of the United States of America or any 
state thereof or the District of Columbia and qualified to do business in the State; (ii) have 
a net worth equal to or greater than the net worth of the Company immediately preceding 



15

the date of such merger, consolidation or transfer; and (iii) expressly and unconditionally 
assume, by written agreement supplemental hereto and acceptable to the County as to form 
and content, in its reasonable discretion, every payment obligation of the Company herein 
and the performance of every covenant of this Agreement on the part of the Company to 
be performed or observed; and

(b) immediately after giving effect to such transaction, no Event of Default, and 
no event, which, after notice or lapse of time or both, would become an Event of Default, 
shall have happened and be continuing; and 

(c) the Company shall have delivered to the County (i) a certificate of a duly 
authorized officer of the Company, accompanied by financial statements of the surviving 
company (if other than the Company) showing compliance with the net worth requirements 
specified in paragraph (a) above and (ii) an opinion of counsel for the Company and/or 
counsel to the transferee company, each stating that such consolidation, merger, 
conveyance or transfer and such supplement to this Agreement comply with this Section 
and that all conditions precedent herein provided for relating to such transaction have been 
complied with.

Upon any consolidation or merger or any conveyance or transfer of all or substantially all 
of the Company’s assets in accordance with this Section 4.05, the successor entity formed by such 
consolidation or into which the Company is merged or to which such conveyance or transfer is 
made, shall succeed to, and be substituted for, and may exercise every right and power of the 
Company under this Agreement with the same effect as if such successor entity had been named 
as the Company herein, and thereafter the Company shall be relieved of all obligations and 
covenants under this Agreement. 

If a consolidation, merger or conveyance or transfer is made as permitted by this Section, 
the provisions of this Section shall continue in full force and effect and no further consolidation, 
merger or conveyance or transfer shall be made except in compliance with the provisions of this 
Section 4.05.

The Company acknowledges transfers of this Agreement or the Negotiated FILOT 
Property may cause the Negotiated FILOT Property to become ineligible for a Negotiated FILOT 
or result in penalties under the Act absent compliance by the Company or any Co-Investor with 
the Transfer Provisions.

Section 4.06. Records and Reports.  The Company and each other Co-Investor will 
maintain, or cause to be maintained, such books and records with respect to its respective portion 
of the Project as will permit the identification of those portions of the Project it places in service 
during the Investment Period, the amount of investment with respect thereto, and any computations 
of Negotiated FILOT Payments made by such entity hereunder, and will comply with all reporting 
requirements of the State and the County applicable to Negotiated FILOT Property under the 
Negotiated FILOT Act, including without limitation the reports required by Section 12-44-90 of 



16

the Negotiated FILOT Act (collectively, “Filings”); provided, however, that the parties hereby 
waive in its entirety the requirement under Section 12-44-55 of the Negotiated FILOT Act for a 
recapitulation of the terms of this Agreement.  In addition, the following records shall be provided 
to the County:

(a) Upon direction of the governing body of the County, a County Official may 
request and obtain such financial books and records from the Company and any other 
Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate that support the Negotiated FILOT returns of the Company 
or such other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate as may be reasonably necessary to verify the 
calculations of the Negotiated FILOT Payments by the Company or such other Sponsor or 
Sponsor Affiliate. For purposes of this Agreement, the term “County Official” shall include 
the Administrator, Auditor, Assessor, or Treasurer of the County.

(b) Each year during the Term hereof, the Company and each other Sponsor or 
Sponsor Affiliate shall deliver to the County Auditor, the County Assessor and the County 
Treasurer a copy of any form or return it files with the Department of Revenue with respect 
to the Project at the same time as delivery thereof to the Department of Revenue.

(c) The Company shall cause a copy of this Agreement, as well as a copy of the 
completed Form PT-443 required by the Department of Revenue, to be filed within thirty 
(30) days after the date of original execution and delivery hereof with the County Auditor, 
the County Assessor and the County Treasurer of the County and of each other county 
which is a party to the Multi-County Park Agreement, and with the Department of Revenue 
and shall update such Form PT-443 from time to time to the extent that the information 
therein is no longer accurate.

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Section, the Company and each other Co-
Investor may, by clear, written designation, conspicuously marked, designate with respect to any 
Filings or other documents or information delivered to the County segments thereof that the 
Company or such other Co-Investor believes contains proprietary, confidential, or trade secret 
matters.  The County shall comply with all reasonable, written requests made by the Company or 
any such other Co-Investor with respect to maintaining the confidentiality of such designated 
segments, to the extent allowed by law.  Except to the extent required by law, unless the County 
has provided at least ten (10) days advance written notice to the Company or such other Co-
Investor of such proposed release, the County shall not knowingly and voluntarily release any 
Filing, documents, or other information provided to the County by the Company or any other Co-
Investor in connection with the Project, whether or not such information has been designated as 
confidential or proprietary by the Company or any other Co-Investor.

Section 4.07. Funding for Special Source Improvements  The Company and each other 
Co-Investor shall provide, or cause the provision of, funding for the Special Source Improvements 
related to its respective portion of the Project.



17

ARTICLE V

FEES IN LIEU OF TAXES

Section 5.01. Payment of Fees in Lieu of Ad Valorem Taxes.

(a) In accordance with the Negotiated FILOT Act, the parties hereby agree, 
during the Term hereof, that there shall be due annually with respect to that portion of the 
Project constituting Negotiated FILOT Property, whether owned by the Company or by 
any other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate, a Negotiated FILOT Payment calculated as set 
forth in this Section, at the places, in the manner and subject to the penalty assessments 
prescribed by the County or the Department of Revenue for ad valorem taxes.  It is 
presently anticipated, but not required, that the initial Negotiated FILOT Payment, which 
shall be due under current Code requirements on the January 15 following the year in which 
the County adds the initial Negotiated FILOT Property to its tax rolls, will be due on 
January 15, 2022.  If the Company designates any other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliates as 
the same shall have been consented to by the County, (if such consent is required pursuant 
to Section 6.02 hereof), the Company must notify the County in writing at the time of such 
designation as to whether such additional Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate shall be primarily 
liable for the Negotiated FILOT Payments due hereunder with respect to such Sponsor or 
Sponsor Affiliate’s respective portion of the Negotiated FILOT Property.  Unless and until 
such additional notification is received, the Company shall be primarily liable for all 
Negotiated FILOT Payments due with respect to such Negotiated FILOT Property.

(b) Subject to adjustment pursuant to the provisions of this Section 5.01, the 
Negotiated FILOT shall be calculated each year in accordance with the following 
provisions:

(i) For each annual increment of investment in Negotiated FILOT 
Property, the annual Negotiated FILOT Payments shall initially be payable for 
a payment period of twenty (20) years.  Accordingly, if such Negotiated 
FILOT Property is placed in service during more than one year, each year’s 
investment during the Investment Period shall be subject to the Negotiated 
FILOT for a payment period of twenty (20) years up to an aggregate of twenty-
five (25) years or, if the Investment Period is extended as set forth in the 
definition of “Investment Period” in Section 1.01 hereof, up to an aggregate 
of thirty (30) years.

(ii) The Negotiated FILOT shall be determined using (1) an 
assessment ratio of 6%; (2) the lowest millage rate allowed with respect to the 
Project pursuant to Section 12-44-50(A)(1)(d) of the Negotiated FILOT Act, 
which based on the property comprising the Land as of the original execution 
and delivery of this Agreement, is 350.6 mills with respect to all Negotiated 
FILOT Property comprised of, or located on, such Land, and shall adjust every 
five (5) years pursuant to Section 12-44-50(A)(1)(b)(ii) of the Negotiated 



18

FILOT Act for the full term of the Negotiated FILOT; and (3) the fair market 
value of such Negotiated FILOT Property as determined in accordance with 
Section 12-44-50(A)(1)(c) of the Negotiated FILOT Act, which, for typical 
arm’s length construction or acquisition, uses the original income tax basis for 
any real property without regard to depreciation or reassessment and the 
original income tax basis for any personal property less allowable depreciation 
(except depreciation due to extraordinary obsolescence); provided, however, 
that the Company or any other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate and the County 
may agree, only in a writing approved by the Council, at a later date to amend 
this Agreement as to Negotiated FILOT Property owned by the Company or 
such other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate so as to determine the fair market 
value of any such real property in accordance with any other method permitted 
by the Negotiated FILOT Act.

(iii) All such calculations shall take into account all deductions for 
depreciation or other diminution in value allowed by the Code or by the tax 
laws generally, as well as tax exemptions which would have been applicable 
if such property were subject to ad valorem taxes, except the five (5) year 
exemption from County taxes allowed for certain manufacturing, distribution, 
corporate headquarters and research and development facilities pursuant to 
Section 3(g) of Article X of the Constitution of the State and Sections 12-37-
220(B)(32) and (34) of the Code; provided, however, the Company or any 
other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate shall not be entitled to extraordinary 
obsolescence with respect to Negotiated FILOT Property as set forth in 
Section 12-44-50(A)(1)(c)(ii) of the Negotiated FILOT Act.

(iv) For purposes of calculating the Negotiated FILOT, the 
Negotiated FILOT Property shall not include any Released Property or Non-
Qualifying Property.

(c) To the extent not prohibited by the Department of Revenue, Negotiated 
FILOT Payments are to be recalculated (subject, always to the continuing requirements of 
Section 5.01(f), hereof):

(i) to reduce such payments in the event the Company or any other 
Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate disposes of any part of the Negotiated FILOT 
Property within the meaning of Section 12-44-50(B) of the Negotiated FILOT 
Act and as provided in Section 4.01(d)(ii) hereof, by the amount applicable to 
the Released Property; 

(ii) to reduce such payments in the event that the Negotiated 
FILOT Property or any portion thereof is damaged or destroyed, lost or stolen, 
or the subject of condemnation proceedings or otherwise removed from the 
Project as a result of circumstances beyond the control of the Company or any 
other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate;



19

(iii) to increase such payments in the event the Company or any 
other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate adds any Negotiated FILOT Property 
(other than Replacement Property) to the Project; or

(iv) to adjust such payments if the Company or any other Sponsor 
or Sponsor Affiliate elects to convert any portion of the Negotiated FILOT 
Property from the Negotiated FILOT to ad valorem taxes, or to FILOT 
payments pursuant to the Multi-County Park Act, as the case may be, as 
permitted by Section 4.01(d)(iii).

(d) Upon installation or placing in service of any Replacement Property for any 
Released Property, such Replacement Property shall become subject to Negotiated FILOT 
Payments to the fullest extent allowed by the Negotiated FILOT Act, subject to the 
following rules:

(i) Such Replacement Property does not have to serve the same 
function as the Released Property it is replacing.  Replacement Property is 
deemed to replace the oldest property subject to the Negotiated FILOT, 
whether real or personal, which is disposed of in the same Property Tax Year 
as the Replacement Property is placed in service.  Replacement Property 
qualifies for Negotiated FILOT Payments up to the original income tax basis 
of the Released Property which it is replacing in the same Property Tax Year.  
More than one piece of property can replace a single piece of property.  To the 
extent that the income tax basis of the Replacement Property exceeds the 
original income tax basis of the Released Property which it is replacing, the 
excess amount is subject to payments equal to the ad valorem taxes, or to the 
FILOT payments pursuant to the Multi-County Park Act, as the case may be, 
which would have been paid on such property but for this Agreement.  
Replacement Property is entitled to the Negotiated FILOT Payments for the 
remaining portion of the Negotiated FILOT Payment period set forth in 
Section 5.01(b)(i) hereof applicable to the Released Property.

(ii) The Company or any other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate shall 
maintain, or cause to be maintained, records sufficient to identify all 
Replacement Property it places in service, and the Negotiated FILOT 
Payments with respect thereto shall be calculated using the millage rate and 
assessment ratio provided on the property it is replacing.

(e) In the event that, for any reason, the Negotiated FILOT Act and/or the 
Negotiated FILOT or any portion thereof is, by a court of competent jurisdiction following 
allowable appeals, declared invalid or unenforceable in whole or in part, or the portion of 
the Project consisting of Negotiated FILOT Property is deemed not to be eligible for a 
Negotiated FILOT pursuant to the Act in whole or in part, the Company and the County 
express their intentions that such payments be reformed so as to afford the Company and 
each other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate benefits commensurate with those intended under 



20

this Agreement as then permitted by law, including without limitation any benefits afforded 
under Title 4, Chapter 12 and Title 4, Chapter 29 of the Code, as applicable, to the extent 
allowed by law.  Absent the legal authorization to effect such reformation, the Company 
and the County agree that there shall be due hereunder with respect to the portion of the 
Negotiated FILOT Property affected by such circumstances ad valorem taxes or FILOT 
payments pursuant to the Multi-County Park Act, as the case may be, and that, to the extent 
permitted by law, the Company and any other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate shall be 
entitled: (1) to enjoy the five (5) year exemption from ad valorem taxes, or from FILOT 
payments pursuant to the Multi-County Park Act, as the case may be, provided by Article 
X, Section 3 of the Constitution of the State, and any other exemption allowed by law; (2) 
to enjoy all allowable depreciation; and (3) to receive all other tax credits which would be 
due if the Company and each other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate were obligated to pay ad 
valorem taxes, or make FILOT payments pursuant to the Multi-County Park Act, as the 
case may be, hereunder.  To the extent that under such circumstances the Negotiated FILOT 
Payments hereunder are subject to retroactive adjustment, then there shall be due and 
payable from the Company and any other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate, as the case may 
be, with respect to such entity’s portion of the Negotiated FILOT Property in question, an 
amount equal to the difference between the Negotiated FILOT Payments theretofore 
actually paid and the amount which would have been paid as ad valorem taxes, or as FILOT 
payments pursuant to the Multi-County Park Act, as the case may be, together with interest 
on such deficiency as provided in Section 12-54-25(D) of the Code (a “Deficiency 
Payment”).

(f)

(i) In the event that the Minimum Statutory Investment Requirement is 
not satisfied by the end of the Compliance Period, then all Negotiated FILOT 
Payments shall revert retroactively to ad valorem taxes, or to FILOT payments 
pursuant to the Multi-County Park Act, as the case may be, calculated as set forth 
in paragraph (e) above, and a Deficiency Payment from each such owing entity 
shall be due and payable with respect to Negotiated FILOT Payments theretofore 
made.  To the extent necessary to collect a Deficiency Payment under this clause 
(i) due to failure to satisfy the Minimum Statutory Investment Requirement, Section 
12-44-140(D) of the Negotiated FILOT Act provides that any statute of limitations 
that might apply pursuant to Section 12-54-85 of the Code is suspended.

(ii) If either or both of the Minimum Contractual Investment 
Requirement and the Minimum Jobs Requirement are not satisfied by the end of 
the Compliance Period, but the Minimum Statutory Investment Requirement is 
nevertheless satisfied by the end of the Compliance Period, the Company and each 
other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate may, in the County’s sole discretion, continue 
to be eligible to take advantage of the Negotiated FILOT described in Section 5.01 
hereof. Should this circumstance arise, the County shall take all factors it deems 



21

relevant into account and notify the Company in writing of the adjustments to the 
Negotiated FILOT described in Section 5.01 hereof, if any.

(iii) In the event that the Minimum Statutory Investment 
Requirement is satisfied by the end of the Compliance Period, but following the 
Compliance Period, investment in the Project, without regard to depreciation or 
other diminution in value, falls below the investment level set forth in the Minimum 
Statutory Investment Requirement, then the Project shall prospectively be subject 
to ad valorem taxes, or to FILOT payments pursuant to the Multi-County Park Act, 
as the case may be, calculated as set forth in paragraph (e) above, in accordance 
with Section 12-44-140(C) of the Negotiated FILOT Act, commencing with any 
Negotiated FILOT Payments due with respect to Project property placed in service 
as of the end of the Property Tax Year in which such deficiency occurs.

(iv) In accordance with the provisions of Sections 4.01(b) and 6.02 
hereof, except for Existing Property, the investment in all property utilized by the 
Company or any other Co-Investor at the Land, whether owned by the Company or 
any other Co-Investor outright or utilized by the Company or any other Co-Investor 
pursuant to any financing agreement or any lease or other arrangement with the 
Company or any other Co-Investor, which qualify as Negotiated FILOT Property, 
shall be counted toward all investment obligations under this Agreement, including, 
to the extent permitted by law, investment obligations under the Negotiated FILOT 
Act.  

(g) Except as otherwise set forth in this Agreement or as otherwise required by 
the Act, any amounts due to the County under this Section 5.01 as a Deficiency Payment 
or other retroactive payment shall be paid within sixty (60) days following receipt by the 
Company or any other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate of notice from the County that such a 
Deficiency Payment or other retroactive payment is due from such entity.  

The Company acknowledges that: (i) the calculation of the annual Negotiated FILOT 
Payment due hereunder is a function of the Department of Revenue and is wholly dependent on 
the parties intended to receive benefits under this Agreement timely submitting the correct annual 
property tax returns to the Department of Revenue; (ii) the County has no responsibility for the 
submission of returns or the calculation of the annual Negotiated FILOT Payment; and (iii) failure 
by any party to timely submit the correct annual property tax return could lead to loss of all or a 
portion of the Negotiated FILOT benefits and other incentives provided by this Agreement.

Section 5.02. Statutory Lien.  The parties acknowledge the County’s right to receive 
Negotiated FILOT Payments hereunder and that the County is entitled to and shall have a statutory 
lien with respect to the Project pursuant to Section 12-44-90(E) of the Negotiated FILOT Act and 
Title 12, Chapter 54 of the Code relating to the collection and enforcement of ad valorem property 
taxes.



22

ARTICLE VI

THIRD PARTY ARRANGEMENTS 

Section 6.01. Conveyance of Liens and Interests; Assignment.  The County agrees that 
the Company and each other Co-Investor may at any time: (a) transfer all or any of its rights and 
interests hereunder or with respect to all or any part of the Project to any Person; or (b) enter into 
any lending, financing, leasing, security, or similar arrangement or succession of such 
arrangements with any financing entity or other Person with respect to this Agreement or all or 
any part of the Project, including without limitation any sale-leaseback, equipment lease, build-to-
suit lease, synthetic lease, nordic lease, defeased tax benefit or transfer lease, assignment, sublease 
or similar arrangement or succession of such arrangements, regardless of the identity of the income 
tax owner of such portion of the Project, whereby the transferee in any such arrangement leases 
the portion of the Project in question to the Company or any other Co-Investor or operates such 
assets for the Company or any other Co-Investor or is leasing all or a portion of the Project in 
question from the Company or any other Co-Investor.  In the event of any such transfer, lease, 
financing, or other transaction described above, the rights and interests of the Company or such 
other Co-Investor under this Agreement, including, without limitation, the benefits of the 
Negotiated FILOT and the Special Source Credits, with respect to any Project property so 
transferred, leased, financed, or otherwise affected shall be so transferred and preserved, upon 
written approval of the County, which approval may take the form of a resolution or ordinance of 
the Council.  

Subject to County consent when required under this Section 6.01, and at the expense of 
the Company or any such other Co-Investor, the County agrees to take such further action and 
execute such further agreements, documents, and instruments as may be reasonably required to 
effectuate the assumption by any such transferee of all or part of the rights of the Company or any 
other Co-Investor under this Agreement and/or any release of the Company or any other Co-
Investor pursuant to this Section 6.01.  

The Company acknowledges that any transfer of an interest under this Agreement or in the 
Negotiated FILOT Property may cause all or part of the Negotiated FILOT Property to become 
ineligible for a Negotiated FILOT or result in penalties under the Negotiated FILOT Act absent 
compliance by the Company or any such Co-Investor with the Transfer Provisions.

Section 6.02. Sponsors and Sponsor Affiliates.  The Company may designate from time 
to time other Sponsors or Sponsor Affiliates pursuant to the provisions of Sections 12-44-30(19) 
or (20), respectively, and Section 12-44-130 of the Negotiated FILOT Act, which, in each case, 
must agree to be bound by the terms of this Agreement and must be approved by resolution of the 
Council. The Company shall provide the County and the Department of Revenue with written 
notice of any Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate designated pursuant to this Section 6.02 within ninety 
(90) days after the end of the calendar year during which any such Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate 
has placed in service Negotiated FILOT Property to be used in connection with the Project, all in 
accordance with Section 12-44-130(B) of the Negotiated FILOT Act.



23

ARTICLE VII

TERM; TERMINATION

Section 7.01. Term.  Unless sooner terminated pursuant to the terms and provisions herein 
contained, this Agreement shall be and remain in full force and effect for a term commencing on 
the date on which the Company executes this Agreement, and ending at midnight on the later of 
(i) the day the last Negotiated FILOT Payment is made hereunder; or (ii) the day that all Special 
Source Credits due from the County hereunder have been fully provided by the County.

Section 7.02. Termination.  In addition to the termination rights of the County under 
Section 8.02(a) hereof, the County and the Company may jointly agree to terminate this 
Agreement at any time, or the Company, may, at its option, unilaterally terminate this Agreement 
at any time, with respect to all, or any portion, of the Project in which event the Project, or such 
portion of the Project, shall be subject to ad valorem taxes, or to FILOT payments under the Multi-
County Park Act, as the case may be, from the date of termination.  Notwithstanding termination 
of this Agreement, the County shall have the same rights to receive payment for any retroactive 
ad valorem taxes, Deficiency Payments, interest or penalties, and the same enforcement rights with 
respect to such obligations as it would have with respect to ad valorem taxes, and the County’s 
rights arising under Section 5.01 prior to the time of such termination shall survive any such 
termination.

ARTICLE VIII

EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES

Section 8.01. Events of Default.  Any one or more of the following events (herein called 
an “Event of Default”, or collectively “Events of Default”) shall constitute an Event of Default by 
the Company or any other (the “Defaulting Entity”) but only with respect to such Defaulting 
Entity’s rights, duties, and obligations contained herein:

(a) if default shall be made in the due and punctual payment of any Negotiated 
FILOT Payments, which default shall not have been cured within sixty (60) days following 
receipt of written notice of such default from the County;

(b) if default shall be made in the due performance of or compliance with any 
of the terms hereof, other than those referred to in the foregoing paragraph (a), and such 
default shall continue for ninety (90) days after the County shall have given the Defaulting 
Entity written notice of such default; provided, the County may, in its discretion, grant the 
Defaulting Entity a longer period of time as necessary to cure such default if the Defaulting 
Entity proceeds with due diligence to cure such default; provided however, that no Event 
of Default shall exist under this Agreement during any period when there is pending, before 
any judicial or administrative tribunal having jurisdiction, any proceeding in which the 
Defaulting Entity has contested the occurrence of such default; or, 



24

(c) if a Cessation of Operations occurs after the Compliance Period. For 
purposes of this Agreement, a “Cessation of Operations” means a publicly announced 
closure of the Company’s facilities in the County or a cessation in production at the 
Company’s facilities in the County that continues for a period of twelve (12) consecutive 
months.

Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, failure to meet any investment or job creation 
requirements, thresholds, or levels set forth in this Agreement shall not be deemed to be an Event 
of Default under this Agreement, but may terminate certain benefits hereunder or obligate the 
Company or other Co-Investors, as the case may be, to make certain additional payments to the 
County, all as set forth in Sections 4.02 and 5.01(f) hereof.

Section 8.02. Remedies on Event of Default.  Upon the occurrence of any Event of 
Default, the following remedies may be exercised by the County only as to the Defaulting Entity:

(a) the County may terminate this Agreement by delivery of written notice to 
the Defaulting Entity not less than thirty (30) days prior to the termination date specified 
therein;

(b) the County may have access to and inspect, examine, and make copies of 
the books and records of the Defaulting Entity pertaining to the construction, acquisition, 
or maintenance of the Project or calculation of the Negotiated FILOT as provided in 
Section 4.06 hereof; 

(c) the County may take whatever action at law or in equity as may appear 
necessary or desirable to collect the amount then due or enforce the County’s rights 
hereunder, it being the express intent of the parties that the County, without limitation, shall 
have the same remedies available by law to collect Negotiated FILOT Payments as if they 
were delinquent ad valorem tax payments, including execution upon the lien referred to in 
Section 5.02 hereof.

Section 8.03. Defaulted Payments.  In the event the Company or any other Co-Investor 
should fail to make any of the payments required to be made by such entity under this Agreement, 
the item or installment so in default shall continue as an obligation of such entity until the amount 
in default shall have been fully paid.  If any such default relates to its obligations to make 
Negotiated FILOT Payments hereunder, such entity shall pay the same with interest thereon at the 
rate per annum provided by the Code for late payment of ad valorem taxes together with any 
penalties provided by the Code for late payment of ad valorem taxes, all as provided in Section 
12-44-90 of the Negotiated FILOT Act.

Section 8.04. Default by County.  Upon the default of the County in the performance of 
any of its obligations hereunder, the Company and any other Co-Investor may take whatever action 
at law or in equity as may appear necessary or desirable to enforce its rights under this Agreement, 
including without limitation a suit for mandamus or specific performance.



25

ARTICLE IX

MISCELLANEOUS

Section 9.01. Rights and Remedies Cumulative.  Each right, power, and remedy of the 
County or of the Company or any other Co-Investor provided for in this Agreement shall be 
cumulative and concurrent and shall be in addition to every other right, power, or remedy provided 
for in this Agreement or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity, in any jurisdiction where 
such rights, powers, and remedies are sought to be enforced; and the exercise by the County or by 
the Company or any other Co-Investor of any one or more of the rights, powers, or remedies 
provided for in this Agreement or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity or by statute or 
otherwise shall not preclude the simultaneous or later exercise by the County or by the Company 
or any other Co-Investor of any or all such other rights, powers, or remedies.

Section 9.02. Successors and Assigns.  The terms and provisions of this Agreement shall 
be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto, any Co-Investor hereof, and their 
respective successors and assigns as permitted hereunder; provided, however, that notwithstanding 
anything herein to the contrary, the County may not assign any or all of its rights, duties, and 
obligations in, to, and under this Agreement without the written consent of the Company, which 
consent may be provided by the Company in its sole discretion.

Section 9.03. Notices; Demands; Requests.  All notices, demands, and requests to be 
given or made hereunder to or by the County or the Company shall be in writing and shall be 
deemed to be properly given or made if sent by United States first class mail, postage prepaid, or 
via reputable courier service, to the following persons and addresses or to such other persons and 
places as may be designated in writing by such party.

(a)  As to the County:

Sumter County
Attn: County Administrator
13 E. Canal Street
Sumter, South Carolina 29150
Phone: (803) 436-2102

(b)  with a copy (which shall not constitute notice) to:

Johnathan W. Bryan, Esquire
Sumter County Attorney
13 E. Canal Street
Sumter, South Carolina 29150
Phone: (803) 774-3877

(c)  As to the Company:



26

Project Combine
Attention:  ___________
____________________
________, South Carolina _______
Phone: ____________

(d)  with a copy (which shall not constitute notice) to:

Tushar V. Chikhliker, Esq.
Nexsen Pruet, LLC
1230 Main Street, Suite 700 (29201)
P.O. Drawer 2426
Columbia, South Carolina 29202
Phone: (803) 540-2188

Section 9.04. Applicable Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State.  To the extent of any conflict between the provisions of this 
Agreement and the Act, the Act controls.

Section 9.05. Entire Understanding.  This Agreement expresses the entire understanding 
and all agreements of the parties hereto with each other and supersedes all prior and 
contemporaneous discussions of the parties, whether oral or written, and neither party hereto has 
made or shall be bound by any agreement or any warranty or representation to the other party 
which is not expressly set forth in this Agreement or in certificates delivered in connection with 
the execution and delivery hereof.  Unless as otherwise expressly set forth herein, this Agreement 
will not confer any rights or remedies upon any Person other than the parties hereto and their 
respective successors and assigns as permitted hereunder.

Section 9.06. Severability.  In the event that any clause or provision of this Agreement 
shall be held to be invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction, the invalidity of such clause or 
provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions hereof.

Section 9.07. Headings and Table of Contents; References.  The headings of the 
Agreement and any Table of Contents annexed hereto are for convenience of reference only and 
shall not define or limit the provisions hereof or affect the meaning or interpretation hereof.  All 
references in this Agreement to particular Articles or Sections or paragraphs of this Agreement are 
references to the designated Articles or Sections or paragraphs of this Agreement.

Section 9.08. Multiple Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in multiple 
counterparts, each of which shall be an original but all of which shall constitute but one and the 
same instrument.

Section 9.09. Amendments.  Subject to the limitations set forth in Section 12-44-40(K)(2) 
of the Negotiated FILOT Act, this Agreement may be amended, or the rights and interest of the 
parties hereunder surrendered, only by a writing signed by both parties.



27

Section 9.10. Waiver.  Either party may waive compliance by the other party with any 
term or condition of this Agreement only in a writing signed by the waiving party.

Section 9.11. Further Proceedings.  The parties intend any action to be taken hereinafter 
by the County pursuant to the express provisions of this Agreement may be undertaken by the 
Chairman of the Council without necessity of further proceedings.  To the extent additional 
proceedings are required by law, however, the County agrees to undertake all such steps as may 
be reasonably required or appropriate to effectuate the intent of this Agreement.

Section 9.12. Indemnification Covenants.  

(a) Except as provided in paragraph (b) below, the Company shall indemnify and 
save the County, its employees, elected officials, officers and agents (each, an “Indemnified 
Party”) harmless against and from all liability or claims arising from the County’s execution of 
this Agreement, performance of the County’s obligations under this Agreement or the 
administration of its duties pursuant to this Agreement, or otherwise by virtue of the County having 
entered into this Agreement.  The Company shall indemnify, defend and save the County harmless 
from and against all costs and expenses incurred in or in connection with any such claim arising 
as aforesaid or in connection with any action or proceeding brought thereon, and upon notice from 
the County, the Company shall defend it in any such action, prosecution or proceeding with legal 
counsel of the Company’s choice, which is acceptable to the County (the approval of which shall 
not be unreasonably withheld); and whose purported representation of the County in such matters 
would not present an unwaiveable conflict of interest under the South Carolina Rules of 
Professional Conduct, the waiveability of which shall be determined by the County, in its 
reasonable discretion; provided, however, that the Company shall be entitled to manage and 
control the defense of or respond to any claim, action, prosecution, or proceeding, for itself and 
any Indemnified Party; provided the Company is not entitled to settle any matter without the 
consent of that Indemnified Party.  To the extent any Indemnified Party desires to use separate 
legal counsel for any reason, that Indemnified Party is responsible for its independent legal costs 
and expenses, in whole.

(b) Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the Company is not required 
to indemnify any Indemnified Party against or reimburse the County for costs arising from any 
claim or liability (i) occasioned by the acts of that Indemnified Party, which are unrelated to the 
execution of this Agreement, performance of the County’s obligations under this Agreement, or 
the administration of its duties under this Agreement, or otherwise by virtue of the County having 
entered into this Agreement; or (ii) resulting from that Indemnified Party’s own negligence, bad 
faith, fraud, deceit, or willful misconduct.

(c) An Indemnified Party may not avail itself of the indemnification of costs 
provided in this Section unless it provides the Company with prompt notice, reasonable under the 
circumstances, of the existence or threat of any claim or liability, including, without limitation, 
copies of any citations, orders, fines, charges, remediation requests, or other claims or threats of 
claims, in order to afford the Company notice, reasonable under the circumstances, within which 
to defend or otherwise respond to a claim.



28

Section 9.13. No Liability of County Personnel.  All covenants, stipulations, promises, 
agreements and obligations of the County contained in this Agreement are binding on members of 
the Council or any elected official, officer, agent, servant or employee of the County only in his 
or her official capacity and not in his or her individual capacity, and no recourse for the payment 
of any moneys under this Agreement may be had against any member of the Council or any elected 
or appointed official, officer, agent, servant or employee of the County and no recourse for the 
payment of any moneys or performance of any of the covenants and agreements under this 
Agreement or for any claims based on this Agreement may be had against any member of Council 
or any elected or appointed official, officer, agent, servant or employee of the County except solely 
in their official capacity.

Section 9.14. Limitation of Liability.   The County is not liable to the Company for any 
costs, expenses, losses, damages, claims or actions in connection with this Agreement, except from 
amounts received by the County from the Company under this Agreement. Notwithstanding 
anything in this Agreement to the contrary, any financial obligation the County may incur under 
this Agreement is deemed not to constitute a pecuniary liability or a debt or general obligation of 
the County.

[Execution Pages to Follow]



29

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto, each after due authorization, have executed 
this Fee in Lieu of Tax and Incentive Agreement to be effective as of the date first written above.

SUMTER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

By: _________________________________________
James T. McCain Jr., Chairman, County Council
Sumter County, South Carolina

[SEAL]

ATTEST:

By: _________________________________________
Mary W. Blanding, Clerk to County Council
Sumter County, South Carolina

PROJECT COMBINE

By: _______________________________
Name: _____________________________
Its: ________________________________



A-1

EXHIBIT A
LAND DESCRIPTION

[To be inserted]

INITIAL APPLICABLE NEGOTIATED FILOT MILLAGE RATE: 350.6 MILLS



Agenda
Sumter County Council

Committee Meeting:  Public Works/Solid Waste
Tuesday, November 12, 2019 - Held at 4:00 p.m.
Sumter County Courthouse, Third Floor, Room 301

County Council’s Conference Room And/Or Chambers
141 North Main Street, Sumter, SC

I. Call to Order – Committee Chairman Artie Baker  

II. Invocation – Council Member, Staff Member, Or Member of the Public

III. Action On Agenda:  November 12, 2019

IV. New Business
  
1. A Request And Action Needed To Fund Repair Work To Be Handled By Lewis Brothers 

Construction Company of Currie, Inc. For Rail Track Repairs; Funds To Be Secured From 
The Infrastructure Account. 

 
2. A Request To Approve An Intersection Streetlight At Old Manning Road and Haven Road 

In Sumter, South Carolina.  

3. Discussion And Possible Action On Rural Streetlight Project. 

4.  Discussion And Possible Action On The Creation Of A Litter Advisory Board.

5. Executive Session – It May Be Necessary For Council To Hold An Executive Session To 
Discuss Economic Development Matters; Receive A Legal Briefing, And/Or  Receive 
Information Concerning Other Matters Deemed Appropriate for Executive Session And 
Take Appropriate Actions.  

V. Old Business
1. None

VI. Adjournment

    cc: Committee Members (Baker, Baten, and Sumpter)
Council Members 
Staff 
Media

In compliance with ADA/Section 504, Sumter County is prepared to make accommodations for individuals 
needing assistance to participate in our programs, services, or activities.  



Agenda
Sumter County Council

Committee Meeting:  Land Use Committee
Tuesday, November 12, 2019 - Held at 4:30 p.m.

Sumter County Courthouse, Third Floor, Room 308
County Council’s Chambers – 141 North Main Street, Sumter, SC

I. Call to Order – Committee Chairman Charles T. Edens 

II. Invocation:  Council Member, Staff, or Citizen

III. Action On Agenda:  Tuesday, November 12, 2019

IV. New Business
1. Discussion And Possible Action Concerning The Sumter County 2040 Comprehensive 

Plan.

2. Executive Session – If Necessary, The Committee May Hold An Executive Session To 
Discuss: Contractual Matters, Receive A Legal Briefing, Discuss A Potential Economic 
Development Matter, Property Matters, Or Other Related Executive Session Issues, And 
Take Appropriate Actions Thereafter.  

3. Additional Information:  ______________________________.

V. Old Business 
1. None

VI. Adjournment

Committee Members – (Edens, Baten, and Baker) 
Appropriate Staff and Community Members             
Media

In compliance with ADA/Section 504, Sumter County is prepared to make accommodations for individuals 
needing assistance to participate in our programs, services, or activities.  



Agenda
Sumter County Council

Committee Meeting:  Fiscal, Tax, And Property
Tuesday, November 12, 2019 - Held at 5:30 p.m.
Sumter County Courthouse, Third Floor, Room 301

County Council’s Conference Room – 141 North Main Street, Sumter, SC

I. Call to Order:  Committee Chairman, The Honorable James T. McCain, Jr.   

II. Invocation:  Council Member, Staff, or Citizen

III. Action On Agenda: Tuesday, November 12, 2019

IV. New Business:
1. Executive Session:  It Is Necessary To Hold An Executive Session To:

A. Discuss An Economic Development Matter. 
B. Receive And Discuss Information Concerning The Terms And Conditions Of An 

Existing Contract For Residential Waste Pick-up In the Unincorporated Areas Of 
Sumer County.

C. Receive And Discuss Information Pertaining To The Existing Contract For The 
Administration Building.

D. Discuss Any Other Items That Are Appropriate For Executive Session And To Take 
Action Thereafter If Necessary On Any Of The Items Listed For Executive Session.  

V. Old Business
1. None

VI. Adjournment

    cc:   Committee Members – (McCain, Edens, McGhaney)
Council Members 
Staff 
Media

In compliance with ADA/Section 504, Sumter County is prepared to make accommodations for 
individuals needing assistance to participate in our programs, services, or activities

In compliance with ADA/Section 504, Sumter County is prepared to make accommodations for individuals 
needing assistance to participate in our programs, services, or activities.  

In compliance with ADA/Section 504, Sumter County is prepared to make accommodations for individuals 
needing assistance to participate in our programs, services, or activities.  

In compliance with ADA/Section 504, Sumter County is prepared to make accommodations for individuals 
needing assistance to participate in our programs, services, or activities.  

In compliance with ADA/Section 504, Sumter County is prepared to make accommodations for individuals 
needing assistance to participate in our programs, services, or activities.  



2019 Christmas Tree Lighting Program

Friday, December 6, 2019

4:30 p.m.

Front Steps of Sumter County Courthouse

1.     Beverly George from Millwood Elementary

2.     Linda Beck from Furman Furman

3.     Erin Gutshall from Wilder Elementary

4.     Christie English from Rafting Creek Elementary

5.     LaCharles Harris from Lemira Elementary

6.   Michelle Blassingale from Kingsbury School 

7.  LaTonya Alston from Pocalla Springs

















     

I. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – OCTOBER 9, 2019

II. NEW BUSINESS

BOA-19-32, 1708/1710 Highway 521 S. (County)
The applicant is requesting variances from Article 4, Section 4.g.2.b. Residential Accessory 
Structure Development Standards and Article 4, Section G, Exhibit 8A Maximum Square 
Footage of Residential Accessory Structures Based on Gross Acreage of the Sumter 
County Zoning and Development Standards Ordinance, in order to increase the maximum 
number of permitted detached residential accessory structures over 120 sq. ft. to a total of 
three (3) and to permit a 1,185 sq. ft. variance from the maximum combined total square 
footage for residential accessory structures allowed on a +/-4.71 acre parcel to 3,610 sq. ft. 
Variances are required in order to subdivide and convey land to adjacent property. The 
property is located at 1708 and 1710 Highway 521 S. The properties are zoned Residential-
9 (R-9), and represented by Tax Map #’s 252-00-02-039 and 252-00-02-052.

BOA-19-33, 3100 Quandry Rd. (City)
A request for a variance from the minimum lot frontage requirement on a public street as 
established in Article 8, Section 8.d.13, Lots in the City of Sumter – Zoning & Development 
Standards Ordinance in order to subdivide an +/-3.0 acre portion of land from an existing 
land locked parcel to serve as an off-site stormwater management area for adjacent 
commercial development.  The property is located at 3100 Quandry Rd., zoned General 
Commercial (GC), and represented by Tax Map # 186-00-04-027 (Part).

BOA-19-34, 3330 Broad St. (City)
A request for a 42 ft. side setback variance for suburban multi-family apartments as 
required in Article 3, Exhibit 3-6 Development Standards for Residential Uses in 
Commercial District in the City of Sumter –Zoning and Development Standards Ordinance 
in order to subdivide a commercial outparcel from the larger tract resulting in an 8 ft. 
setback for the existing multi-family apartment development. The property is located at 
3330 Broad St, zoned General Commercial (GC), and represented by Tax Map # 186-00-
03-001.

BOA-19-35, 1820 Rush St. (County)
The applicant is requesting a 1680 sq. ft. variance from Article 4, Section G, Exhibit 8A 
Maximum Square Footage of Residential Accessory Structures Based on Gross Acreage in 
the Sumter County Zoning and Development Standards Ordinance in order to construct a 
2400 sq. ft. accessory structure on property located at 1820 Rush St.  The property is 
zoned Agricultural Conservation (AC), and represented by Tax Map # 358-00-02-023.

BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS
WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 13, 2019 @ 3:00

FOURTH FLOOR COUNCIL CHAMBERS
SUMTER OPERA HOUSE

21 N. MAIN STREET



BOA-19-36, 701 & 703 Bultman Dr. and 26 Wise Dr. (City)
A request for a 9 ft. front setback variance for three (3) freestanding signs in the General 
Commercial (GC) zoning district as required in Article 8, Section H, Exhibit 8-5, Maximum 
Total Sign Area by Use, Number, Dimensions, and Location of Individual Signs in the City 
of Sumter – Zoning & Development Standards Ordinance in order to construct three (3) 
freestanding monument signs within 1 ft. of the front property line for the properties 
identified as 701-713 Bultman Dr. and 26 Wise Dr.  The properties are located at 701-713 
Bultman Dr. and 26 Wise Dr., zoned General Commercial (GC), and represented by Tax 
Map #’s 229-08-02-025, 229-08-02-026, 229-08-02-006, and 229-08-02-008.

III. OTHER BUSINESS

 NONE

IV. ADJOURNMENT  



S o u n d  t h e  A l a r m  P a r t n e r  o f  t h e  
Am e r i c a n  R e d  C r o s s

1 1 / 1 / 1 9

Sumter County 
Council



American Red Cross
M i s s i o n



me where to 

order the 
plaque for 

Frank Edwards 
with Williams 

Brice 
Charitable 

Trust.

Can I place the 

order with my t-
card, or should 

Holly purchase 
with her p-

card?

Many thanks!

Home Fire 
Cases In 
Sumter County
93 Fami l ies Served

315 Indiv iduals  Ass i s ted



Sumter County 
Storm Reponses
5  F am i l i e s  –  Ca s e s

1 5  I n d i v i d u a l s  A s s i s t e d



Pillowcase Project 
Sumter County 
Manche s t e r  E l emen t a r y - 8 1  s t u d e n t s

H i g h  H i l l s  E l emen t a r y - 2 5 5  s t u d e n t s

P o ca l l a  S p r i n g s  E l emen t a r y - 1 2 5  s t u d e n t s

W i l d e r  E l emen t a r y - 1 5 0  s t u d e n t s

A l i c e  D r i v e  E l emen t a r y - 1 5 0  s t u d e n t s

W i l s o n  H a l l / T h oma s  S um t e r  - 4 0  s t u d e n t s

G r a n d  t o t a l  8 0 1



Sound the Alarm in 
Sumter County

7 L ives  Saved In  2019

22  L ives  Saved S ince 2016

65  South  Caro l ina L ives  Saved 
S ince 2014



7 | Disaster Responder Partnership Opportunity

Our Work

Down the Street. 

Across the Country. 

Around the World.®

Disaster Cycle 

Services
Biomedical

Services

Training

Services

International 

Services 
Service to the 

Armed Forces

Home Fire 

Campaign



8 | Disaster Responder Partnership Opportunity

We Impact Lives Every Day 

20
people are assisted
by the American 
Red Cross.

464,000
times a day, a child 

receives a measles or 

rubella vaccination 

from the Red Cross 

and our partners. 

17,000
times a day, a person 

receives lifesaving 

Red Cross training.

1,100
times a day, we 

provide services to 

military members, 

veterans and their 

families.

170

13,000 
times a day, the Red 

Cross needs blood 

donations.

times a day, Red Cross 

workers help a family 

affected by a home fire

or other disaster.

Every 60 seconds 



Gamecock  

County Gazette 

          Sumter County, S.C. 

 

               November 2019 

An online newsletter brought to you from Sumter County Government, home of Revolutionary War General Thomas Sumter, the original “Fighting Gamecock.” 

The next time you head to the 

polls, a new voting machine 

awaits your ballot. 

Sumter County’s Pat Jeffer-

son, who is in charge of the 

Voter Registration and Elec-

tions Office, has spent con-

siderable time lately involved 

with public outreach to let 

folks know what to expect 

the next time they vote. 

“I want everyone to know 

and be aware that we have 

the new Express Vote here in 

Sumter County,” she said. 

“As a matter of fact, all 46 

counties have the new Ex-

press Vote.” 

Deidre Boone, an Information Technology Services Manager for 

Sumter County, has been working closely with Jefferson to get the 

machines ready for two upcoming elections in Mayesville and      

Pinewood. 

Boone said once a voter 

has the ballot card in 

hand, the voter proceeds 

to the Express Vote and 

inserts the card. Selec-

tions are then displayed 

on the screen and voters 

can use either a stylus or 

their finger to make se-

lections. The review 

screen allows you to 

review your selections 

prior to printing your 

card, she explained. 

“Once you’re satisfied 

with your selections, you 

can proceed to printing 

your card,” she said. 

The Express Vote ejects your ballot card and you can review your 

selections.      (See VOTE, Page 3) 

New Express Vote machines await Sumter County voters 

Turkey Creek Neighborhood Association 

applauds as dilapidated homes removed 

It’s safe to say members of Turkey Creek Neighborhood Association 

are ecstatic. 

Several weeks into a grant-funded clean-up that involves the removal 

of a dozen dilapidated homes, and already the neighborhood is vastly 

improved. 

“I feel great about it because it looks so different,” said Josephine 

Young, vice president of the TCNA. “It’s so clean – very, very much 

of an improvement.” 

A little over a year ago, Sumter County was awarded a $283,983 

Community Development Block Grant from the S.C. Department of 

Commerce to demolish vacant and dilapidated homes in East Shan-

nontown. But the grant itself came about as a lot of research and leg-

work about the properties was well underway by the neighborhood 

association.  

“The opportunity came when Mr. McCain got involved, and then it  

 

moved very quickly,” Young said. 

(See NEIGHBORHOOD CLEANUP Page 3) 

Left to right: Ida Neal, Josephine Young, Barbara Richburg and Renee Richburg stand in 

front of a lot on Brent Street after an abandoned home was torn down 

Sumter County’s Voter Registration and Elections Director Pat Jefferson demonstrates how to use a new voting machine 



William “Bubba” Hartley likes to lead by 

example. 

“Those guys will tell you I’m the first guy to 

jump in the hole,” he said. “I never ask them 

to do anything I wouldn’t do.” 

Hartley, who has worked in the Storm Water 

Utility Department for about seven years, 

supervises storm drain clearance, among other 

things. 

“I’m out there in the field. I’m the go-to guy,” 

he said.   

Storm Water Manager Alfred Conyers said 

Hartley is “a great team player” who super-

vises the use of heavy equipment. 

“He’s hardworking, dependable, reliable,” 

Conyers said. “A great guy.” 

On any given day Hartley might be using 

heavy equipment, or making repairs, or read-

ing water meters. 

“There’s a number of things to take care of, 

so we cross-train all of our guys so everybody 

can know what to do,” he said. “You can’t 

expect one guy to run a backhoe and fix a 

water leak at the same time.” 

A Georgetown native and Manning High 

School graduate, Hartley jokes that he migrat-

ed from Home Branch in Clarendon County 

“all the way to Pinewood.” After high school, 

he worked at the V.B. Williams Furniture 

Company in shipping and  receiving only to 

discover that “plant work wasn’t for me.” 

Hartley then went to work wiring homes and 

spent about five years doing electrical work. 

Driving trucks was the next stop in his career 

before working at International Paper and 

Terminix. Since coming on board with Sum-

ter County, he’s brought his wide-ranging 

skillset to various tasks at hand but is always 

mindful of maintaining a safe work environ-

ment. 

Cleaning storm drains means using a Jet Vac 

(vacuum) truck that can shoot about 80 gal-

lons of water a minute to clear any obstruc-

tions. 

“That’s a lot of pressure,” he said. “But you 

always keep safety in mind anytime you’re 

working with heavy equipment.” 

Hartley is quick to praise his co-workers and 

supervisor. 

“I’m a team player. It takes all of us work and 

we work as a team,” he said. “Anytime you 

have employees that feel appreciated, they 

will always go above and beyond. I try to 

keep that in my leadership – always lead by 

example.” 

During his down time, Hartley likes to hunt 

deer and go after bream and catfish. 

(See HARTLEY Page 5) 

Hartley is Storm Water Utility’s ‘go-to guy’ 
       Employee Spotlight 

Veterans Day to feature parade, ceremony at Courthouse on Nov. 11 



     VOTE from Page 1 

“Once you have reviewed your selections on your ballot card as they 

were printed, you can now proceed to the DS200,” she said, referring 

to the scanner. “You will insert your ballot in the top portion of the 

DS200 to scan your ballot.” 

Once the ballot has been scanned, a prompt appears, stating, ‘Thank 

you for voting.’ 

“It’s fast, it’s easy and it’s secure,” Jefferson said. 

She also wants Sumter County residents to know that Express Vote 

machines are available for demonstration in the Voter Registration 

and Elections Office. 

“And we do invite you to come out and try them out,” she said. “It 

takes a village to run an election and we just want to get the word 

out.” 

The new machines are compliant with the Americans with Disabilities 

Act and if you have any questions, please call the Voter Registration 

and Elections office at (803) 436-2313. 

NEIGHBORHOOD CLEANUP From Page 1 

County Council Chairman James T. McCain Jr. said 

cleaning up neighborhoods has long been one of his key 

issues. 

“This, to me, is such a wonderful program because 

we’re able to get rid of an eyesore and the landowners 

keep their property,” he said. “It’s good for the neigh-

borhood, it’s good for the property owners and it’s good 

for the City and County – everyone wins.” 

McCain pointed out how the Santee-Lynches Regional 

Council of Governments (COG) has administered the 

grant and helped navigate what can be an involved regu-

latory process when it comes to demolitions.  

“We’re grateful for the COG’s participation,” he said. 

“They’re working closely with our folks in County Gov-

ernment to make sure we’re following all the procedures 

and protocols.” 

Chris Hilditch, property manager for Sumter County, 

said four properties on Brent Street have been taken down and several 

more in the area are currently being prepared for demolition. 

“It’s trucking along pretty well,” he said. 

When the Turkey Creek Neighborhood Association was formed in 

2005, Ida Neal said there were about six people. Now there’s around 

20 residents that meet regularly, she said. 

“I’ve lived there all my life. I’m 73,” said Neal, president of the 

TCNA. “It can make a lot of difference when the community gets 

together and talks about getting things straight.” 

A sense of neighborhood pride has returned, she said. 

“It’s wonderful to see how clean it can be,” she said. “It makes a 
world of difference.” 

County Council Chairman Jim McCain, left, back, wearing a hat, took a photo 

last December with the TCNA in front of a dilapidated Brent Street property  

Demolition and removal of blighted Brent Street properties got underway the 

second week of October 2019 thanks to a grant-funded initiative  



Enjoy nature in November 

at Poinsett State Park 

Poinsett happenings this month 

Nov. 1     Nature Hike from 6:30 to 8 p.m. 

Bring water, hiking/walking shoes, insect repellent, camera and weather appropriate clothing. Meet at 

the park office. Free with paid park admission. 

Nov. 15   Night Hike with a Ranger  6:30 to 8 p.m. 

A short and fun hike at night with Ranger Lauren, who will shed light on the subject of the dark and 

how different creatures have adapted to low light and dark environments. Meet at the overlook shelter at 

7 p.m. to check in and gather. At 7:30 p.m. the hike of the Coquina Trail begins, which is about 1.5 

miles. 

Nov. 29    Float and Fire  4:30 to 6:30 p.m.  

Join Ranger Lauren for a sunset float around the park’s 10-acre lake and enjoy a sunset view on the 

water. Stick around for a bonfire and hot cider back on land. Choice of pedal boat, canoes, single or 

double kayaks and jon boats. Life jackets and paddles provided. Call the park office to register for this 

program 803-494-8177  office hours 11 to noon and 4 to 5 p.m. (Mon-Thurs) and 9 to 5 p.m. (Fri-Sun) 

southcarolinaparks.com/poinsett  

6660 Poinsett Park Road, Wedgefield, S.C. 29168 

803.494.8177 

Mountain biking abounds 

in Manchester State Forest   

You can hit the trails at Poinsett with your bike, or 

you can find miles of backwoods and off-road fun in 

our state forest. Permits are required and must be in 

one’s possession when riding. Parking for trail use is 

allowed only at the designated staging area on the trail 

map and riding is allowed only on designated trails. 

The Manchester State Forest office is located at 6740 

Headquarters Road, Wedgefield, S.C. 29168  

803.494.8196   www.state.sc.us/forest/mbike.htm  

https://southcarolinaparks.com/poinsett
https://www.state.sc.us/forest/mbike.htm


  HARTLEY from Page 2 

“And on Sunday morning, like any other Southerner, I’m in church,” he 

said. 

He and his wife Margo have three children: Trey Hartley, who serves in 

the Army National Guard and studies at Central Carolina Technical Col-

lege while working at Caterpillar; Kristen Hartley, a Registered Nurse; 

and Abigail Timmons, an elementary school teacher and mother of 

Liam, who is Bubba and Margo’s grandson. 

So how did you get your nickname? 

When he was brought home from the hospital, his sisters were told “this 

is y’all’s ‘Little Bubba,’” he said, and it stuck. 

“Most people don’t know my first name is William,” he said, laughing. 

Administration: 803-436-2102 

Animal Control: 803-436-2066 

Assessor: 803-436-2115 

Auditor: 803-436-2136 

Building Inspections: 803-774-1600 

Clerk of Court: 803-436-2227 

Clerk to Council: 803-436-2107 

Civic Center: 803-436-2270 or 2271 

Cultural Center/Patriot Hall: 803-436-2260 

Detention Center: 803-436-2340 

Emergency Management: 803-436-2158 

Emergency Medical Services: 803-436-2416 

(In an emergency, please call 911) 

Family Court: 803-436-2366 

Fire Department: 803-436-2600 

Fiscal Affairs: 803-436-2333 

Gallery of Art: 803-775-0543 

Human Resources: 803-436-2306 

Landfill: 803-495-3314 

Master In Equity: 803-774-3884 

Planning: 803-774-1660 

Probate Court: 803-436-2166 

Public Defender: 803-774-6137 

Public Works: 803-436-2241 

Purchasing: 803-436-2331 

Recreation & Parks: 803-436-2248 

Register of Deeds: 803-436-2177 

Sheriff’s Office: 803-436-2000 

Solicitor’s Office: 803-436-2185 

South Sumter Resource Center: 803-436-2277 

Stormwater Utility: 803-774-3855 

Summary Court: 803-436-2280 

Sumter Animal Control Volunteers: 803-774-3232 

Sumter Little Theatre: 803-775-2150 

Treasurer: 803-436-2213 

Veterans Affairs: 803-436-2302 

Voter Registration/Elections: 803-436-2310 

Water Utility: 803-774-3854 




	1. CALL TO ORDER:
	1) Chairman Or Vice Chairman Of Sumter County Council

	2. INVOCATION:  Council Member, Staff, or Member of the Public
	3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:
	4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA:
	5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:
	1) Regular Meeting Tuesday, October 22, 2019
	Minutes, October 22, 2019


	6. LAND USE MATTERS AND REZONING REQUESTS: 
	1) OA-19-09 -- Stand-Alone Truck Parking In The Agric
	11-12-19 Agenda
	OA-19-09 - Stand-Alone Truck Parking (County)3RD RDG

	2) 19-911 – Second Reading -- An Ordinance Of The Sum
	Ordinance 19-911 - Comp Plan Adoption Ordinance


	7. OTHER PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	1) None

	8. NEW BUSINESS:
	1) R-19-04 -- A Resolution To Opt Out Of The Nationwi
	R-19-04 - Sumter County Resolution to Opt Out 191112

	2) 19-914 -- First Reading --  An Ordinance Authorizi
	Ordinance 19-914 -- Manning Avenue Revitilization Attachment documents.doc

	3) Discussion And Possible Action Concerning Adjustme
	4) It  May Be Necessary To Hold An Executive Session

	9. OLD BUSINESS:
	1) 19-912 – Third Reading -- An Ordinance Authorizing
	Ordinance 19-912 -- Transfer of Property on Wedgefield Road to Wedgefield Baptist Church (007)
	19-912 - Revised contrat signed by the church 191024

	2) 19-913 – Second Reading -- An Ordinance Authorizin
	Ordinance 19-913 - FILOT Ordinance (Project Combine)
	19-913 - Fee in Lieu of Tax and Incentive Agreement (Project Combine)


	10. COMMITTEE REPORTS:
	1) (NOTE:  If any of the committee meetings end early
	AGENDA Public Works Committee November 12, 2019

	2) Land Use Committee Meeting, November 12, 2019, 4:3
	AGENDA Land Use Committee November 12, 2019

	3) Fiscal, Tax, and Property Committee Meeting Novemb
	AGENDA Fiscal Tax And Property November 12,  2019

	4) Report From Council Members On Other Meetings, Tra

	11. MONTHLY REPORTS:
	1) Christmas Tree Lighting Program
	2019 Christmas Tree Lighting flyer

	2) Sheriff' Office Monthly Report
	October 2019 SCSO Monthly Report11.8.2019

	3) Building Codes Of Adjustment And Appeals Meeting
	BOA 11-13-19 - Agenda

	4) Red Cross Information
	Red Cross FY19 Overview

	5) Sumter County Newsletter
	Gamecock County Gazette Nov 2019

	6) 2020 Chamber Retreat
	Chamber Retreat 2019


	12. COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT:
	13. PUBLIC COMMENT:
	14. ADJOURNMENT:

